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Five-Year Financial Summary

BE+T-A=+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—EENF ZE-TF —T——F T ZT-=F
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
FET FET FET FET FEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$’000
E¥ RESULTS
A Revenue 47,932 58,607 74,475 93,844 95,074
E 7 Gross profit 32,439 38,433 44,387 54,424 52,238
B BT 15 % Bl v ) Profit before income tax 8,903 12,785 15,148 16,566 15,081
FiEfiAx Income tax expense (1,523) (2,572) (2,695) (2,568) (3,390)
F 55 Profit for the year 7,380 10,213 12,453 13,998 11,691
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EENF ZE2-FF ZT——F ZT—=—F ZB-=F
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
FET FET FET FET FEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
BEEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BWEE Total assets 63,188 112,611 144,445 168,862 192,382
waE Total liabilities (33,232) (20,346) (45,105) (63,459) (81,732)
& EFE Net assets 29,956 92,265 99,340 105,403 110,650

HE_TZTNFT_A=T—HIEFENEXE
MEENMRBEBRE  DREGARANR_-FT—
ZENA-TEETENERER -

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the year ended 31

December 2009 were extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated

27 April 2010.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
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Total Revenue

(B8%T)
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2009-2013 BMEFHEER
CAGR of 2009-2013

18.7.

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

LON S

Revenue-Pafulin

(B&%ET)
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1 6 ] 5 %
34.0
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Revenue-Tuoshu
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Financial Highlights

—E—=F —T——F -]
2013 2012 Change
XE(FER: Results (US$'000):
WA Revenue 95,074 93,844 +1.3%
£ H Gross profit 52,238 54,424 -4.0%
HR SRR Profit from operations 15,144 16,169 -6.3%
B BT 15 %54 A A Profit before income tax 15,081 16,566 -9.0%
KRARHEE A Profit attributable to owners of
P& 15 % F) the Company 11,691 13,998 -16.5%
BRI : Profitability:
F F & Gross profit margin 54.9% 58.0% -3.1%
4R = Net profit margin 12.3% 14.9% -2.6%
TR ERE A Basic earnings per share
(Z=1L) (US cents) 2.8 3.4 -0.6
B MR (FHExT) - Financial Position (US$°000):
BEE Total assets 192,382 168,862 +13.9%
PAN/NEIEFEDN Equity attributable to owners of
FEAS T = the Company 110,650 105,403 +5.0%
BEaRE Total liabilities 81,732 63,459 +28.8%
e RIRITHEH Cash and bank balances 25,487 19,706 +29.3%
REBESHRR : Liquidity:
BN E (%) Current ratio (times) 1.2 1.4 -0.2
F B A & Net debt-to-equity ratio* 29.8% 18.3% +11.5%

* FRERSLEE=-(EE - R RRTHEH -2E  ~

PR A R MR R

other receivables)/Total equity

Net debt-to-equity ratio = (Borrowings — cash and bank balances — pledged

Annual Report 2013
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Financial Highlights

 venue W AR 4458 h01.3%
G5 mion e Remained steady in 2013

Revenue slightly up by 1.3%

| +13 % I
2012 2013
W ER# B ERRRREER W Hth#ER
Specialty pharmaceuticals Plant extract and healthcare products Other pharmaceuticals
(B@=1) (B&xT) (BB=T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

+23.4% | A
23.3 __‘7
-4.3%
e

2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
W =8 B EYVRBRERRRER W AR
Specialty pharmaceuticals Plant extract and healthcare products Other pharmaceuticals
(B@=T) (BBZT) (BB=T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)
+4-596
' d — P m—
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
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Financial Highlights

W AR W AFE
Net Profit Net profit margin
(B&%T) (%)
(US$ million)

14.9%
12.3%

2012 2013

W THsKRES W RESRERS

Interim DPS Final DPS
(AL (&AL
(HK cents) (HK cents)

2012 2013
H FREBEE H RBEE W FEE
Non-current assets Current assets Net assets
(H&=T) (H&%=T) (B&%7T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

2012 2013

20134 44 Fl| 5 116.5%

4 ZOR 4°2.6%

Net profit decreased by 16.5% in 2013
Net profit margin decreased by 2.6%

fHIRR B R AR8.347E Il
EEABRE R ER6.95EL

Interim dividend of HK 8.34 cents per share
Proposed final dividend of HK 6.95 cents per
share

HEERIBI9%
FEEEIN5.0%

Total assets increased by 13.9%
Net assets increased by 5.0%
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“Lansen” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 of the
Group to all shareholders of the Company.

Looking back at 2013, impacted by national policies on tendering and
standardisation of business activities and the macroeconomic market
pressure, the growth of the disease modifying anti-rheumatic drugs
market dropped from 11.1% in 2012 to 7.9% in 2013. Since domestic
price level continued to rise sustainably and costs of production and
sales such as pharmaceutical raw material costs, packaging costs,
marketing costs and labour costs also increased continuously, the
competition in the whole industry became more intense.

In 2013, the Group realised revenue of approximately US$95.1 million,
representing a slight increase of 1.3% over last year. Profit for the year
was approximately US$11.7 million, representing a decrease of about
16.5% over last year. It was the first time since the listing that the Group
recorded a decrease in its profit for the year. This slowdown in revenue
growth and profitability can be attributed to a number of factors: the
senior management of the Company changed during the year, although
now stabilised, the Company experienced a very high turnover rate in its
sales team of which 150 left our Group; changes in national policy on
tendering procedures and standardisation of business activities created
disruption in the market slowing down marketing activities; the
elimination of two of our orthopedic products following a negative
assessment of their long-term prospects and the rising costs referenced
above all impacted on results.

Outlook

After a challenging transition year in 2013, Lansen will enter a new
development stage. Management is optimistic about the prospects of
the industry and is confident of Lansen’s future development.

Lansen will continue to optimise its marketing model for specialty
pharmaceuticals, make use of regional academic promotional
advantages to enhance market brand awareness of its products, and
enhance the product marketing knowledge and professional
competence of the sales team, in order to maintain its leading market
position. Meanwhile, the Group will also further strengthen the
standard of compliance and the monitoring of daily operational
activities.
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In terms of the business development of specialty pharmaceuticals, the
Group will continue to develop other disease-modifying drugs and
drugs for autoimmune-related diseases through acquisition, agency
arrangements and independent research and development, and
cooperation with domestic and overseas pharmaceutical enterprises. For
its existing products, the Group will actively develop their application to
other related areas to extend product life cycles. It is believed that when
our product mix becomes increasingly diversified and more
comprehensive, the selling expense to revenue ratio will decrease
further after certain level of economies of scale has been reached, to
cope with possible price adjustments in the future.

Increasingly strict regulatory policies in the pharmaceuticals industry set
ever higher requirements for production, management and marketing.
Under the comprehensive squeeze from anticipated medical insurance
fee control, channel consolidations and the slow growth pace of the
industry, the trend of merger and consolidation will further strengthen.
Management believes that Lansen is well positioned and is capable of
capturing the upcoming business development opportunities.

Increased understanding of and concern on personal health among the
general population and their rising demand for healthcare products
facilitate the further growth and development of plant extract and
healthcare products. Management will grasp favourable opportunities
to continue to broaden product range in order to attract and expand
the customer base. More resources will be devoted to plant extract and
healthcare products and the brand awareness and product image will be
improved. Meanwhile, the production process will be strictly controlled
to increase customer confidence in the Group’s quality products.

Launched during the year, the long-awaited and updated National
Essential Drugs List (“National Essential Drugs List” (2012 edition))
extended coverage of drugs from the previous 307 types to 520 types,
which was a significant increase. As announced by the Ministry of
Health, the effective date of this list was 1 May 2013. Eight products of
the Group were included in the National Essential Drugs List (2012
edition), out of which our gynecological product Bazhen Keli drew wide
attention from peers in the pharmaceutical industry and clinical experts.
The Group has decided to enhance the strategic position of Bazhen Keli
within our Group and make it one of our key products.

Management is also actively developing new sales channels for generic
drugs. The Group will continue to explore strategic cooperation with
third-party agencies and hope to enhance the market coverage, increase
the sales volume of our products and maintain competitive market
prices by way of outsourcing.

Annual Report 2013
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The Board is pleased to welcome and congratulate Mr. Liu Bang Min on
his new appointment as Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") and Executive
Director and also welcome Lansen’s new senior management members.
We believe this new management team will bring a more
institutionalised and professional management approach to the
Company. The Board is optimistic about Lansen’s future.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to
the Board, management and employees of the Group for their
contributions and efforts in 2013 and also our clients, banks, suppliers,
shareholders and partners for their continuous support.

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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Business Review

The Group recorded revenue of approximately US$95.1 million (2012:
US$93.8 million) for the year ended 31 December 2013, representing a
slight increase of 1.3% over last year. Profit for the year was
approximately US$11.7 million (2012: US$14.0 million), representing a
decrease of 16.5% over last year.

The turnover of the specialty pharmaceuticals segment decreased by
6.2% over last year, while the segment profit increased by 4.5%. In the
second half of 2013, affected by national policies and actions from some
administrative authorities, the nationwide marketing campaign for our
specialty pharmaceuticals business had slowed down. The three
rheumatic specialty prescription products of Lansen recorded a total
revenue of US$55.0 million (2012: US$56.0 million), representing a slight
decrease of 1.8% over last year. In addition, the elimination of two of
our orthopedic products resulted in a further decrease in the revenue of
specialty pharmaceuticals.

The turnover of the plant extract and healthcare products segment
increased by 23.4% over last year and the segment profit grew by
14.6%. Increased understanding of and concern on personal health
among the general population and their rising demand for healthcare
products facilitated the further growth and development of the plant
extract and healthcare products business. Benefiting from the
continuous growing demand for natural products, the revenue of the
plant extract and healthcare product segment recorded stable growth,
of which overseas sales recorded a growth of more than 40% over last
year.

The revenue from other pharmaceutical segment decreased by 4.3%
over last year and the segment profit decreased by 5.9%. During the
year, due to construction upgrade and transformation of the production
base, termination of production was necessary in some plants in order
to cope with the upgrade of production facilities, thus affecting the
supply of certain other pharmaceutical products. Upon the completion
of the transformation project, supply has returned to normal level. The
obstetrics products in the other pharmaceuticals segment grew
satisfactory. With some obstetrics products being included in the
National Essential Drugs List, the business is expected to experience
healthy growth in the future.

Annual Report 2013
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More stringent supervision over China’s

pharmaceutical industry

Encouraged by such favourable factors as population growth,
accelerated aging of its population, improved national income levels and
continued increase in government healthcare spending, it is expected
that China’s medical needs will sustain growth. In recent years, the
government has continued to reinforce its supervision over the industry,
for which the major policies included the standardisation of industry
operations, the compression of circulation channels and the reduction of
circulation costs. In the short term, these policies exerted significant
impact on small and medium enterprises and increased the overall
operating pressure on the industry. However, it has also facilitated
industry integration and is beneficial to the healthy and stable
development of the industry in the long run.

The newly revised “Good Supplying Practice of Pharmaceutical
Products” (the “Revised GSP Standard”) was officially implemented in
June 2013. It is believed that pharmaceutical companies will inevitably
face severe tests under this system, and companies not conforming to
the standards will inevitably be eliminated from the market. This will
facilitate the standardised operation of pharmaceutical companies. The
Group’s companies should be well positioned to meet these revised
standards.

In July 2013, the National Development and Reform Commission (the
“NDRC") released a notice about conducting cost and producer’s (port)
price surveys on some companies, which involved sixty well-known
pharmaceutical companies including listed pharmaceutical companies.
Lansen was not on the list. Management believes that the NDRC is
aiming at acquainting itself with the costs incurred in the production
and circulation process of pharmaceutical products through this survey,
so as to adjust drug prices in the future.

In August 2013, the State Administration for Industry and Commerce
released a notice about its decision on conducting a special governance
action against unfair competition on a nationwide basis from August 15
to the end of November, of which commercial bribery in the
pharmaceutical field became the main focus. Subsequently in December
2013, the National Health and Family Planning Commission further
tightened industry standards by issuing circulars concerning “Rules on
the Establishment of Commercial Bribery Blacklists for Purchase and
Distribution in the Health Care Industry” and “Nine Orders for the
Purpose of Strengthening Moral Construction in the Health Care
Industry”.



PR R IR IR B R A A
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

B B R am M AT

Management Discussion and Analysis

—E=Ft—R FHATN\E=FEERE
REORCBEFHLRBINE - HEN_T—=
FHARM(ABRAR R ERFEREEER
METER) RAKRBETENREERT
TER PRARNFEREABERFLERS
ERREAREFERE - EEEMREEIRN
BEEXNRMEER -

“E-ZHF4R BRZBHEANARIED
MEFEREREBAN BERBEERHE
i B AR AR R 2

BEBINARAMRE BEEXSERRD
BRI BELXOEE-TES - KK
BEREMSREARBRRESR BERTAE
EERERZBENES MM -

ERANER {TEEXEEERK

RE_ZT-=F=ANHONRE  BAEHTH
BRELHTEEGRERLEBARE R
HEHERGEREMRELT HRELTENRE A
RER=—FT—=6WA\REH EFTSHER
TR ERTCERTHARFATES &
BIREALEMIE-

AEBREANBEANERNKRE B
DEANMEEABNBELE  BEALE
THRONERSIE - E-FRAEEBB N ERE
HEREN -

BEELFNER PHACTATHEELEA
MR BAEBERENER EHRX— @
B BRI AT - HBEHEEEBK
RARBHEREGEL EEXELNER -

In November 2013, the Third Plenary Session of the 18th Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China resolved to propose
deepening reforms in the pharmaceutical and health system, together
with “Several Opinions of the State Council on Promoting the
Development of Health Service Industry” released in October 2013,
setting the underlying tone for the reform roadmap of the
pharmaceutical industry in the future. The Central Government attaches
great importance to basic medical and healthcare services, with an aim
to improve the health quality of the entire population, which
management believes to be good for the favourable development of the
pharmaceutical industry.

In December 2013, the NDRC released a notice on the adjustment of the
price of some narcotic drugs, but Lansen did not produce or sell
narcotic-related drugs.

With the persistent advancement of the healthcare reform, the
pharmaceutical industry will move towards standardisation and become
more transparent, and pharmaceutical companies will undergo further
integration. The Group will follow the State policies and regulations on a
timely basis, and maintain the Group’s leading position in the area of
rheumatology.

Value human resources and develop professional

management team

As announced on 6 March 2013, Mr. Xu Jun, Lansen’s CEO and
Executive Director, notified us that he would leave the Company at the
conclusion of his service contract. The service contract of Mr. Xu Jun
expired on 8 April 2013. The Board subsequently appointed Mr. Liu
Bang Min as the CEO and Executive Director to succeed Mr. Xu Jun.

During the year, the Group increased its investment in human resources,
reallocated management responsibilities and further enhanced the
overall professional competence of the management team through
internal promotions and external recruitment.

Lansen had entered into the era of professional management and
Lansen will develop into a more mature and more successful company
based on its original foundation. We believe that this new management
team will bring a more institutionalised and professional management
approach to the Company.
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Focus on research and development as well as

innovation

In 2013, Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo
Liwah"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, based on its
original research and development platform, established Rheumatology
Drug Institute through resource integration. Lansen has continued to
strengthen its own scientific research and development capabilities
while establishing long-term cooperation with major domestic research
institutes, thus forming a unique Lansen research and development
mode characterised by the combination of independent research and
development, joint development and entrusted development. Ningbo
Liwah's Rheumatology Drug Institute was included in “2013 Enterprise
Institutes in Ningbo”. Ningbo Liwah will actively enhance research
equipment in the institute, recruiting outstanding scientific research
talents, and continuously increase funding on research and
development, striving to achieve the target of being a provincial
enterprise institute.

Ningbo Liwah was also awarded “2013 Top 100 Manufacturing
Enterprises in Ningbo” and “2013 Ningbo ¢ Competiveness Top 100
Enterprises”, which highlights its development potential.

Complete production base upgrade and

transformation project

In line with the implementation of the New National Good
Manufacturing Practice Standards (“New GMP"), Ningbo Liwah has
been actively promoting the upgrade and transformation of its
production base. This project officially gained the GMP accreditation
and was granted the certificate in January 2014. The approval of GMP
review evidenced that both the software and hardware of Ningbo
Liwah'’s production quality system meet the new standards stipulated by
the State, laying a solid foundation for the Company’s future
development.

Complete the Liwah Zhiti Expansion Project

In order to meet market demands for Pafulin in the future, Ningbo
Liwah Plant Extraction Technology Limited (“Liwah Zhiti"), the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, commenced the expansion of its
Pafulin production workshop and active pharmaceutical ingredient
extraction production lines (“Liwah Zhiti Expansion Project”) since 2011.
This project was completed in 2013, and is in full operation. The Liwah
Zhiti Expansion Project covered a construction area of more than 7,000
square metres. In addition to the newly-built production line for total
glucosides of white peony, the project is also equipped with the
automatic production lines for water extraction and ethanol extraction,
which can be used for producing newly-developed plant extraction
products in the future.
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Liwah Zhiti exploits new business opportunities

The Group believes that there is great development potential in the
global market of healthcare products, and intends to explore different
ways to grasp the opportunities in this market. In consideration of the
rapid development of healthcare products market, Liwah Zhiti has
transformed its plant extraction business from one relying on
outsourcing service for Chinese medicine semi-finished products to a
provider of major ingredients for pharmaceutical-graded healthcare
products. It is Liwah Zhiti's strategy to develop major ingredients for
healthcare products by enhancing the market share of its existing
products and also expanding its product mix with new products. To
acquire the plant extraction materials for its production of major
ingredients for healthcare products, Liwah Zhiti will establish business
relationship with suppliers of reliable and quality plant extraction
products.

During the year, Liwah Zhiti entered into an entrusted manufacturing
framework agreement with Xian Haotian Bio-engineering Technology
Co. Ltd. ("Xian Haotian”) and Yangling Haotian Bio-engineering
Technology Co. Ltd. (“Yangling Haotian”), both are indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the controlling shareholder of the Company. Xian
Haotian and Yangling Haotian have the expertise, experience and
resources and have established a strong presence in plant extraction
product development and production in the PRC. The ability of Liwah
Zhiti in utilising the production capacity, technologies and research
capacity of Xian Haotian and Yangling Haotian will facilitate Liwah Zhiti
to explore new business channels, seek appropriate business
opportunities, and achieve successful business transformation. The
execution of the entrusted manufacturing framework agreement will
enable the Group to have access to a reliable supply of quality plant
extracts at a competitive price. The Board considers it is beneficial for
the Group to enter into the entrusted manufacturing framework
agreement and that the transactions are in line with the Group’s
business development directions.

Expand coverage in the dermatology area

In March 2014, Lansen obtained from by Shaanxi Biogene Technology
Co. Ltd. the exclusive agency distribution right and brand usage right of
its Kefumei series in certain regions in China. Human-like collagen
dressing (Kefumei) products are mainly for the suppression and
mitigation of skin inflammation responses caused by various reasons
such as dermatitis, sensitive skin, acne and laser therapy. Lansen will
continue to capitalise on its promotion model combining academic
marketing and patient education in order to increase its share in the
cosmeceutical market.
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Stable development of Starry

Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Starry”) completed the
expansion of its iohexol production facilities by the end of 2012, which
resulted in a doubling of its annual production capacity. Due to the
switch between the new and old production lines in early 2013, it took
time for the new production line to produce products that fully met the
requirements of its customers. As a result, the economy of scale of the
new production line has not been fully reflected in the 2013 results. As
the new production line is now in full operation and the market price of
iodine has decreased, and the normal provision of goods to customers
has resumed, it is expected that future sales and profit contribution will
grow steadily.

Financial Review

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of US$95.1 million (2012: US$93.8
million) for the year ended 31 December 2013, representing an increase
of 1.3% over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue generated from
specialty pharmaceuticals amounted to US$57.6 million (2012: US$61.4
million), representing a decrease of 6.2% over last year. Revenue
generated from plant extract and healthcare products amounted to
US$28.7 million (2012: US$23.3 million), representing an increase of
23.4% over last year, while revenue generated from other
pharmaceuticals amounted to US$8.8 million (2012: US$9.2 million),
representing a decrease of 4.3% over last year.

The Group's revenue for the year remained largely stable comparing to
that of last year, which was mainly due to the following reasons: (1)
affected by national policies and measures taken by certain
administrative authorities, the nation-wide promotion of specialty
pharmaceuticals slowed down in the second half of 2013. The
aggregate revenue from our three core products (Pafulin, Tuoshu and
MMF) amounted to US$55.0 million (2012: US$56.0 million), decreased
by 1.8% as compared to last year and representing approximately
57.8% of the total revenue of the Group; (2) the elimination of two of
our orthopedic products resulted in a decrease in the revenue growth
rate of specialty pharmaceuticals during the year; and (3) benefited from
the rising demand for natural products, revenue generated from plant
extract and healthcare products increased by US$5.4 million to US$28.7
million, representing approximately 30.2% of the total revenue of the
Group.
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Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded a gross
profit of US$52.2 million (2012: US$54.4 million), representing a
decrease of 4.0% over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the overall gross profit margin of
the Group was 54.9% (2012: 58.0%), representing a decrease of 3.1%
over last year.

The decrease in overall gross profit margin as compared to last year was
mainly attributable to: (1) the change in product sales mix, under which
the sales proportion of specialty pharmaceuticals, which have a higher
gross profit margin, to the Group's total revenue decreased from 65.4%
as at 2012 to 60.6% as at 2013; and (2) the increases in raw material,
packaging material, depreciation expenses and direct labour costs as
compared to last year, resulting in an increase in the production cost of
our products.

Other income

Other income, primarily including government grants and interest
income from bank deposits, amounted to US$2.6 million (2012: US$2.8
million) for the year ended 31 December 2013, representing a decrease
of 7.8% over last year. Government grants primarily came from the local
government and were partly used as recognition of the Group’s efforts
in developing high-technology pharmaceutical products.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2013, selling and distribution expenses
of the Group amounted to US$27.7 million (2012: US$31.3 million),
representing a decrease of 11.3% over last year.

During the year, due to the national policies on the standardisation of
commercial activities, most pharmaceutical companies reduced their
daily promotion on pharmaceuticals in China in the third quarter, which
eventually led to a decline in overall pharmaceutical sales growth. In
view of the changes in the economic environment, Lansen was also
forced to reduce certain promotional activities in the third quarter.

Management believed the marketing model and academic promotional
advantages of specialty pharmaceuticals are the key factors in
maintaining its leading market position. The Group endeavoured to
enhance market recognition of specialty pharmaceutical products and
actively carried out patient education activities. By organising academic
conferences across China, doctors and patients were able to have a
better understanding of the pharmacology, efficacy and benefits of
these products.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to US$12.0 million (2012: US$9.8 million), representing an
increase of 21.8% over last year. The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the increases in staff remuneration and benefits as
well as research and development expenses.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2013, finance costs of the Group
increased by US$0.6 million, mainly due to the increase in average bank
borrowings.

Share of post-tax profit of an associate

Share of post-tax profit of an associate for the year ended 31 December
2013 amounted to US$1.6 million (2012: US$1.4 million), representing an
increase of 13.4% over last year.

On 23 November 2012, the Group indirectly increased its holding in
Starry to 21.5% by acquiring an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Cathay International Holdings Limited (“CIH"), which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Starry is still treated as an associated
company of the Company and its results have been accounted for using
the equity method.

Starry completed the expansion of its iohexol production facilities by the
end of 2012. Due to the switch between the new and old production
lines in early 2013, the economy of scale of the new production line has
not been fully reflected. As its profit contribution began to grow steadily
in the second half of 2013, management is optimistic about the future
development of Starry.

Income tax expense

Ningbo Liwah obtained the certification as a high technology enterprise
and enjoyed a preferential income tax rate of 15% since 1 January 2010.
In addition, Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry Limited (“Bozhou Lansen”) is
engaged in certain qualified agricultural business in the PRC with the
relevant profits exempted from enterprise income tax.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the "EIT Law" ) and the implementation rules for the income tax
law, except for Ningbo Liwah and Bozhou Lansen, the enterprise income
tax rate for other subsidiaries in China was 25%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013 decreased by 16.5% or US$2.3 million to US$11.7
million from US$14.0 million for the last year.
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Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group primarily finances its working capital and other capital
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and
resorts to external financing including both long-term and short-term
bank borrowings from time to time when the operating cash flow is
insufficient to meet capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2013, net current assets and current ratio of the
Group were approximately US$19.3 million (31 December 2012;
US$23.5 million) and 1.2 (31 December 2012: 1.4) respectively.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to US$11.0 million (31 December 2012: US$11.4 million). As at
31 December 2013, the Group had pledged bank deposits of US$14.5
million (31 December 2012: US$8.3 million) to secure bank borrowings.

The Group's borrowings as at 31 December 2013 amounted to US$59.2
million (31 December 2012: US$42.3 million) which is fully repayable
within 1 year (31 December 2012: fully repayable within 1 year).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s net debt-to-equity ratio was
29.8% (31 December 2012: 18.3%), calculated by net debt (borrowings
minus cash and bank balances and pledged other receivables) at the end
of the period over total equity.

The exposure of the Group's transactional currency to foreign currency
risk was minimal as most of the financial assets and liabilities held by the
subsidiaries of the Group are denominated in the respective functional
currency of the subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have any
foreign currency hedging policy. However, management would closely
monitor foreign exchange exposure and consider hedging foreign
currency exposure when necessary.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2013, certain bank deposits, bill receivables, other
receivables, buildings and plants and prepaid land lease payment in an
aggregate carrying amount of US$31.0 million (31 December 2012:
US$26.5 million) were pledged to secure banking facilities and bank
borrowings.
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Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's capital expenditure contracted for
but not reflected in the financial statements amounted to US$4.0
million (31 December 2012: US$2.6 million).

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Material acquisitions and disposals

On 15 October 2013, Ningbo Liwah entered into a pharmaceutical
technology transfer agreement with Tianjin Longbai Biological
Engineering and Technology Company Limited (“Longbai”) and Dr. Liu
Hui, pursuant to which Ningbo Liwah agreed to acquire from Longbai
the Misoprostol Development Project (as defined below) for a cash
consideration of RMB14,800,000 (approximately HK$18,754,600). The
Misoprostol Development Project comprised the know-how and related
materials and technology, intellectual properties, patent, permit(s) and
licence(s), and certain supporting equipment (“Misoprostol
Development Project”) . The consideration will be paid by Ningbo Liwah
to Longbai in cash in several milestone payments. The consideration was
arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties, having
made reference to an independent valuation of the Misoprostol
Development Project carried out by an independent professional valuer
in Hong Kong.

Apart from the Misoprostol Development Project mentioned above,
there were no other material acquisitions and disposals of any
subsidiaries and associates of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2013.

Human resources

The Group had over 850 employees as at 31 December 2013. Staff
remuneration of the Group, including salary, allowances, medical
insurance and provident fund, is determined with reference to individual
performance, professional qualifications, experience in the industry and
relevant market trends.

Salaries of employees have been maintained at a competitive level and
are reviewed annually, with reference to the relevant labour market and
economic situation. The Group provides career advancement training in
the form of internal courses and workshops for the staff and
encourages the staff to participate in training programmes related to the
Group's business.
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Executive Director

Mr. LIU Bang Min, age 42, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of our Company. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall
business strategy and corporate development of our Group. Mr. Liu
joined our Group in September 2012 and has over 18 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Liu had been the national sales director (Rheumatology Group) of
Abbott China from 2009 to 2011. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree
in medical imaging from Zhejiang University School of Medicine
(formerly Zhejiang Medical University) in 1993.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Burnau HUNT, age 74, is a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company. Mr. Hunt joined the Cathay International
Group in 1992. He is the deputy chairman and a non-executive director
of Cathay International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange. Mr. Hunt was formerly managing director of
Aliant Capital, an investment company in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt, a US
citizen, spent 24 years with Bank of America in international
management and lending positions. Mr. Hunt was senior vice president
and area general manager for Bank of America located in Hong Kong.
Mr. Hunt was president of the American Chamber of Commerce in
Hong Kong in 1989. In 1990, Mr. Hunt was appointed to the Hong
Kong Government'’s International Business Committee, and from 1989
to 1991 was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s Advisory
Committee on Free Trade. Mr. Hunt is currently a trustee of the
American Chamber of Commerce’s Charitable Foundation. Mr. Hunt
also served as a member of the Main Board and GEM Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange from November 2004 to June 2011. Since
October 2012, Mr. Hunt has been a director and Chief Executive Officer
of Solar Plus (HK) Limited, a private investment company incorporated in
Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt obtained a bachelor of arts degree from Duke
University in 1961 and a master’s degree in international affairs from
Columbia University in 1963.
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Mr. LEE Jin Yi, age 56, is a non-executive Director and deputy chairman
of our Company. Mr. Lee joined the CIH Group in January 2010 and is
the chief executive officer of CIH. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in
the banking industry and held various senior management positions
with major financial institutions over the past 20 years. Mr. Lee has been
a director of Xiamen City Commercial Bank. Prior to joining the CIH
Group, Mr. Lee was the managing director and chief executive officer of
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited for five and half years and a director of
Fubon Financial Holding Company Limited. Prior to that, Mr. Lee was the
managing director and China senior country officer of J.P. Morgan
Chase & Co. and chairman of the Hong Kong Management Committee
of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. Mr. Lee was appointed as an independent
director of Taichung Bank on 22 June 2011. Taichung Bank is listed on
Taiwan Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Harvard University in 1984. Since October 2012, Mr.
Lee has been a director of HK & Macau Taiwanese Charity Fund Limited,
a charitable institution registered in Hong Kong.

Mr. TANG Jun, age 54, is a non-executive Director of our Company. Mr,
Tang joined the CIH Group in 1994 and has been working in the
business development department, responsible for exploring investment
opportunities in the pharmaceutical industries for our Group. Currently,
Mr. Tang is the vice president and head of business development of the
CIH Group. Mr. Tang is also acting as chairman for Ningbo Liwah,
Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”),
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo Lansen”) and
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited (“Lansen
Technology). Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor of philosophy degree from
Hangzhou University in 1982, a master of philosophy degree from
Beijing Normal University in 1986 and a licentiate degree in law from
Lapland University, Finland in 1993.
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Ms. TAO Fang Fang, age 43, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. Ms. Tao joined the CIH Group in 2007. Ms. Tao became a
professional accountant and a registered accountant in 1996 and 1998
respectively. Before being promoted to the position of director of
finance department of a leading pharmaceutical group in China, Ms. Tao
worked as financial controller for a manufacturing company and
financial manager for a marketing and sales company under the control
of that group. Ms. Tao graduated from the department of accounting of
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 1992.

Ms. YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca, age 55, is a non-executive Director of our
Company, company secretary of CIH, vice president and head of asset
management of the CIH Group responsible for the management of the
operations of the CIH Group’s invested projects. Ms. Yip is a fellow of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1994, a
fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 1991,
and an associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales since 2008. Ms. Yip is also an associate of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators since 1988 and The Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries since 1994. Prior to joining the
CIH Group in February 1994, Ms. Yip worked for KPMG as an auditor
and tax consultant for 7 years. Ms. Yip graduated from Lingnan College
where she obtained a diploma in business administration and
accounting in 1981 and a honours diploma in accounting in 1983.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael, age 62, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group on 9
April 2010. He has over 32 years’ experience in external audit, IT audit,
training, accounting and finance, company secretarial and corporate
administration, MIS management, internal audit, information security,
risk management and compliance. Mr. Chan is a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants; and a fellow and specialist in
information technology of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is also associate or
member of the following professional bodies: The Hong Kong
Computer Society, Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, and
the Life Management Institute. He is also a certified information systems
auditor with the Information Systems Audit and Control Association and
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan is the chief
executive of C&C Advisory Services Limited, senior advisor of New
Frontier Computer Systems Limited and an adjunct professor in the
School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Chan has worked at CMG Life Assurance Limited
(formerly Jardine CMG Life Assurance Limited) from 1991 to 1996 and
his last position was general manager, compliance. He was the head of
internal audit of Dao Heng Bank/Guoco Group Limited from 1996 to
2000, the head of compliance in Greater China, managing director of
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from 2001 to 2003, the group financial
controller of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to 2005, the
director of Quality Assurance of HKICPA in 2006 and the head of group
compliance of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Limited
from December 2006 to April 2009. Mr. Chan graduated with a higher
diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1976.

Mr. TANG Chiu Ping, Raymond, age 65, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Tang joined our Group on 9
April 2010. He has been in the executive search field since 1985 when
he joined the Hong Kong office of Russell Reynolds Associates. Mr. Tang
was formerly chairman, Greater China at Russell Reynolds Associates
until late 2008 when he retired from the industry. Mr. Tang was
educated in the United States at Tufts University in Boston,
Massachusetts where he obtained a bachelor of arts degree in 1972;
and he graduated with a master’s degree in public health from the Yale
University School of Medicine in New Haven, Connecticut in 1975. Mr.
Tang has served as a member of non-governmental organisations such
as the Hong Kong Council of Academic Accreditation and Vocational
Quialifications.
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Mr. Fritz Heinrich HORLACHER, age 64, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Horlacher joined our Group on
10 February 2011. He has over 30 years’ experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Horlacher started his pharmaceutical career
with Roche Australia in 1974. Mr. Horlacher worked at Zuellig Pharma
Asia Pacific (“Zuellig Pharma”) from 1981 to 2008 and was the chief
executive officer of Zuellig Pharma from 1995 to 2008. He was
responsible for its operations servicing more than 125 international
research-based pharmaceutical manufacturers in the Asia Pacific region.
Mr. Horlacher retired as chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma in
2008. From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Horlacher was an alternate director of
Invida Group Pte Ltd. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive director of
Australian Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange) from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Horlacher was
the Asia representative on the board of directors of the International
Federation of Pharmaceutical Wholesalers from 2002 to 2008. He was
regional director of Asia for the Pharmaceutical Wholesale Division of
Alliance Boots and was also a director and chairman of the Board of
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Corporation from 2011 to 2013. Mr.
Horlacher graduated in 1969 from Montana Institute in Switzerland and
from Union College in South Africa in 1972.

Senior Management

Mr. MUI Chi Hung, age 47, is the company secretary, chief financial
officer and authorised representative of our Company. Mr. Mui joined
our Group in November 2010. Mr. Mui has over 20 years of experience
in financing, auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr,
Mui held various senior positions in different listed groups and
international accounting firms, including PricewaterhouseCoopers, Far
East Consortium Group and Rising Development Group, where he spent
7 years serving as a financial controller, company secretary and
executive director. Mr. Mui obtained his bachelor’'s degree in
management majoring in accounting from the University of Lethbridge
in Canada and his master’s degree in professional accounting from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2002. Mr. Mui is currently a
member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. ZHOU Rong, age 44, is the senior vice president of the Group and
general manager of Ningbo Liwah. Mr. Zhou joined our Group in
December 2001 and has over 20 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhou was
employed by a company within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1991
to 2001. Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’s degree in heating, ventilation
and air-conditioning engineering from Shenyang Architectural and Civil
Engineering Institute in 1991.

Mr. XU Guang, age 39, is the director of sales of the Group and also
acting as general manager of Ningbo Lansen. Mr. Xu joined the Group
in January 2002 and has over 15 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xu was
employed by a company within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1998
to 2001. Mr. Xu graduated in 1996 from Xinjiang Institute of Finance
and Economics with a marketing major.

Mr. CHEN Xiao Yun, age 43, is the vice president of marketing and
business development of the Group. Mr. Chen joined our Group in April
2013 and has over 15 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was the marketing
director of Shanghai CP Guojian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen
obtained his master’s degree in business administration from Fudan
University in 1999.

Mr. ZHU Di Han, age 39, is the human resources director of the Group.
Mr. Zhu joined the Group in April 2013 and has over 16 years’
experience in human resources. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhu was
the senior manager of Pfizer Investment Co. Ltd from 2005 to 2013. Mr.
Zhu graduated in 1997 from Beijing Union University with a textile
engineering major.



BAAEBREZERERAF

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

EETWE

Report of the Directors

EEMAREFBSEZFERSERHFEZ-Z
— =+ _A=1t-BILEEIREXGEAH
HERE o

TEXRHK
ARAERBREERAR - EXEMERH
R B DR 2 EIE R B I RER NI 52032 ©

#E R DR
AREEBE_ZT—=F+_HA=+—HILFE
LHEBENFCSAZEEEERAEMEEER
RBE -

G A 4L ) B SRR 5 8. 34 Il (#91.083= 11l1)
Z B OH O B A 134,611,000 TT(4
4,462,000% 7T) °

EEREFIMR_ZT-OFEANBRIIKRE
F A 2 IR RO & A 6.9578 Il (£70.90% Il 2

REAIE B - A 528,842,500 7T (493,719,000
ET) EATHRERKREASH EE - FA
EE -

BElEEE

AEBZYE BEAIRERFRAZEHF
BFEHN A M REM L6 -

=Rt

REBMZEEFBEHN Y BEHRERMN 26 -
% 25

ARBBRARFEFAZEBFIFTH NI K RE
B 5E24 o

FA - ARAREEAHER
EXBEARRRE MR L E

AIMEREE - 1

AT 20 7k f#
R-F—=F+"A=1—8 ZRHEEHS
REEFE ARAZANKRESER

37,690,000 7t + H 493,719,000 T &E % &

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Principal Activities
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries and associate are set out in notes 20 and 32 to
the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 63.

An interim dividend of HK8.34 cents (approximately US1.08 cents) per
share amounting to HK$34,611,000 (approximately US$4,462,000) in
aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK6.95 cents (approximately US0.90 cents) per share to the
shareholders on the register of members on 6 June 2014, amounting to
HK$28,842,500 (approximately US$3,719,000) in aggregate, subject to
approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As 31 December 2013, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to US$37,690,000, of which approximately
US$3,719,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. Details
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of the movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are
set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
sales.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 43.8% (2012: 42.4%) of the Group's
total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 14.1% (2012: 12.4%)).

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 9 April 2013)

Mr. Xu Jun (resigned on 8 April 2013)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Tang Jun

Ms. Tao Fang Fang

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

In accordance with the article 108 of the Company’s articles of
association, Messrs. Chan Kee Huen, Michael, Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond
and Fritz Heinrich Horlacher will retire by rotation and, be eligible to
offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM") has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to The Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

BEERT WMAEARAERT

EENE g% ZEREAR BREZzED L

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of Director Capacity shares held Company

FERELE EHEAA 500,000 0.12%
Mr. Lee Jin Yi Beneficial owner (&)
(Long position)

Stephen Burnau Hunt %t A& EmEBA 100,000 0.02%
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt Beneficial owner (IFE)
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(Long position)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at
31 December 2013 which was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2013, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors, the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.
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Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held Company
BREEREELEENEES (PE)ERAR 1 EmEn 209,820,000 50.56%
([ 2= B B B8 2 (FR ) ) Beneficial interest (IFE)
Cathay International Pharma Manufacture (Long position)
and Distribution (China) Limited
("Cl Pharma China")
BZEEEREEMRMEEZBR AR 1 X EBEER 209,820,000 50.56%
((B=EEEE]D Interest of a controlled (F7)
Cathay International Changchun corporation (Long position)
Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical (China)
Limited (“CIC")
BZRBEEREEY MR EZ (PR BRAF 1 RELEEER 209,820,000 50.56%
([ 2= B B A B i e 28 2 (PR ) Interest of a controlled (7
Cathay International Biotechnology & corporation (Long position)
Pharmaceutical (China) Limited
("Cl Biotech & Pharma China"”)
BIRBIR B AR AR ([HREREE]) 1 RELEEER 209,820,000 50.56%
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited Interest of a controlled (7 8)
("CIP") corporation (Long position)
B 2= B B A W) # fin B IR A ) (B 2= B B 1 LB 209,820,000 50.56%
E R Interest of a controlled (17 #&)
Cathay International Biotech Company corporation (Long position)
Limited (“CIB")
Cathay International Holdings Limited 1 T EEREDR 209,820,000 50.56%
("CIH") Interest of a controlled (i E)
corporation (Long position)
Cathay International Enterprises Limited 2 T EERED 209,820,000 50.56%
(“CIE") Interest of a controlled (i E)
corporation (Long position)
Wu Zhen Tao 3 2REEFEEIMARIET 209,820,000 50.56%
2@ A (57 2)
Founder of discretionary (Long position)
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust
= 4 R EEER 41,620,000 10.03%
Cheng Hoo Interest of a controlled (iFE)
corporation (Long position)
Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited 4 EmEs 41,620,000 10.03%
("Loyal Peace”) Beneficial interest (57 R)
(Long position)
KM AR AA 4 ZEEA 41,620,000 10.03%
Ever Sail Limited Trustee (iFE)

(Long position)
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Notes:

(1) These shares are held by ClI Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to
18% by CIC and 82% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned as
to 100% by ClI Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in turn
wholly owned by CIP. CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly
owned by CIH. Therefore, CIC, Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH
are deemed to be interested in these shares.

(2) CIH is held as to approximately 60.99% by CIE. Therefore, CIE is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by ClI Pharma China.

(3) The entire issued share capital of CIE is held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen
Tao for the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his family (“Wu
Family Trust”). Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is deemed
to be interested in the shares held by CIE.

(4) Ever Sail Limited, acting as trustee of a discretionary trust set up for the benefit
of certain current and former management personnel and employees of the
Group and/or their respective family and/or charity organisation (“the
Management Trust”). The entire issued share capital of Loyal Peace is held by
Ever Sail Limited.

The entire issued share capital of LPE is held by Ever Sail Limited acting as the
trustee of the Management Trust whom in turn is wholly owned by Mr. Cheng
Hoo. Therefore, Mr. Cheng Hoo is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by LPE.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Amendments to the Selling Restrictions Agreement
Reference is made to the prospectus of the Company dated 27 April
2010 (the "Prospectus”). As disclosed in the Prospectus, certain parties,
including Loyal Peace, entered into the Selling Restrictions Agreement
with the Company, voluntarily agreeing not to dispose of nor enter into
any agreement to dispose of their shares of the Company during the
period commencing from the Company’s listing date (i.e. 7 May 2010)
(the “Listing Date”) and ending three years from the Listing Date or 30
June 2013, whichever is later (the “Period”). As at the Listing Date, Loyal
Peace held 48,830,000 shares of the Company (the “Initial Shares”).
Also, Loyal Peace has undertaken in the Agreement that during the
period commencing from the expiry date of the Period and ending four
years therefrom (the “Selling Restriction Period”), Loyal Peace may only
dispose of the Initial Shares according to the schedule (the “Release
Schedule”) stated in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholder” of the Prospectus.
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On 5 February 2013, the parties to the Agreement entered into a
supplemental agreement (the “First 2013 Supplemental Agreement”)
pursuant to which the expiry date of the Period was brought forward
from 30 June 2013 to 28 February 2013. On 25 February 2013, the
same parties entered into another supplemental agreement (the
“Second 2013 Supplemental Agreement”) to revise the release
schedule.

Details of the amendments have been published in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 June 2013.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Connected Transactions

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and the connected person(s) (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company constitute connected transactions of
the Company. The Company regulates and manages such transactions in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

Non-Exempt Connected Transactions

On 15 October 2013, Ningbo Liwah entered into a pharmaceutical
technology transfer agreement with Longbai and Dr. Liu Hui, pursuant
to which Ningbo Liwah agreed to acquire from Longbai the Misoprostol
Development Project for a cash consideration of RMB14,800,000
(approximately HK$18,754,600). The Misoprostol Development Project
comprised the know-how and related materials and technology,
intellectual properties, patent, permit(s) and licence(s), and certain
supporting equipment. The consideration will be paid by Ningbo Liwah
to Longbai in cash in several milestone payments. The consideration was
arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties, having
made reference to an independent valuation of the Misoprostol
Development Project carried out by an independent professional valuer
in Hong Kong.
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CIH, which owns a 50.56% shareholding in the Company, has a 65%
indirect interest in Longbai. Accordingly, Longbai is an associate of CIH
and is a connected person of the Company. The Acquisition therefore
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Dr. Liu Hui is a director and a shareholder of
the remaining 35% interest in Longbai. He is a third party independent
of the Company and its connected persons. Since the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the Acquisition are more than 0.1% but
less than 5%, the Pharmaceutical Technology Transfer Agreement is
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements, but is exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the transactions have been published in the Company’s
announcements dated 15 October 2013 and 23 October 2013.

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On 3 September 2013, Liwah Zhiti, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an entrusted manufacturing framework
agreement (the “Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement”)
with Yangling Haotian and Xian Haotian (collectively referred as
“Suppliers”). According to the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework
Agreement, Liwah Zhiti agrees to buy and the Suppliers agree to
produce and sell the plant extract products to Liwah Zhiti. It is
contemplated that the plant extract products will be used by the Group
for the production of key ingredients for healthcare products to be sold
in the market by the Group.

Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement

Date
3 September 2013

Parties
(@)  Liwah Zhiti, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

(b)  Yangling Haotian, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a
controlling shareholder of the Company; and

(¢ Xian Haotian, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a
controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement, Liwah
Zhiti may, during the Term (as defined below), acquire from the
Suppliers, the plant extract products on an order-by-order basis. There is
no minimum purchase amount under the Entrusted Manufacturing
Framework Agreement and Liwah Zhiti has no obligation to acquire the
plant extract products from the Suppliers nor are the Suppliers required
to provide them to Liwah Zhiti.

Pricing basis

For the plant extract products to be purchased by Liwah Zhiti from the
Suppliers under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement,
the selling price per unit of the plant extract products shall be
determined by reference to the prevailing prices of the products in the
market on an order-by-order basis. Liwah zZhiti will follow its existing
standard purchasing procedures with third party suppliers in negotiating
and determining the purchase price with the Suppliers, which will
involve obtaining fee quotations from other independent third party
suppliers in the market and comparing them with those from the
Suppliers.

The supply of the Plant Extracts Products by the Suppliers shall be:

(@  on normal commercial terms and upon terms which are not less
favourable to Liwah Zhiti than terms available to Liwah Zhiti from
independent third parties supplying similar plant extract products
specified by Liwah Zhiti; and

(b) at a competitive pricing determined on arm'’s length basis by
reference to the prevailing market price of the plant extract
products.

Term

The term of the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
commenced on 3 September 2013 and will expire on 31 December
2014 (subject to any extension which may be agreed by the parties),
unless terminated by either party by giving the other written notice of
termination at least one month prior to the effective date of such
termination.
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Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the approved annual caps for
and the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under the above Entrusted Manufacturing
Framework Agreement are set out below:

HE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HILEFENFE LR
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2013

A R #28,000,0007T
(#94,600,000% 7T)
RMB28,000,000

(approximately US$4.6 million)

BHE_ZT—=F+_A=+—-HLEFENERXZEHE
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2013
A R#142,4307C
(#723,000% 7T)

RMB142,430
(approximately US$23,000)

BE EMHREE14A381K EFSCEEZAR
AZEARAEE R ERERIETAT
B EZRF ZEMEREETSEREZS
BF2EELARE - BYIENTESCENE
BERBRIREZEMRE  THEIAZERS
DARBIR—MEEEEBBRIER KA
E¥BRAREBREZERGZMFIERETYL - M
EHGERBAFABYRARRGKME 2 &

A -

BREXEEEN BE_T—=F+t_-HA=
T—BLEFE  BBERRMINNRE 2B E
ARBUPBERRE EHRBNFUATZRE
RPRTEBERS > NERE LTRANE
UABRSERERCMEXNEZEHR 2 ZH

i BUR
AEEREZHFMIHIEBREFZRR BXE
B TREREEEDTSEEMEE -

ARBEFZHFMIAFHEE SR F AT
ZEE BEARBREALET SR BIED
RIE °

BEBERE
ARRERANKNFAERE AT EHBE
KARBMBRBERRLRILOIRZ2H S RN
ZBRBEREGRX

Annual Report 2013
T -=FFR

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed-upon procedures in
respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group. The
auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures to the
Board. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor and
have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into by the
Company in the ordinary and usual course of its business on normal
commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2013, the
related party transactions disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements either did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, or only constituted fully exempted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions by virtue of the de minimis
exemption under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are determined with
reference to individual performance, professional qualifications,
experience in the industry and relevant market trends.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float as
required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 6.

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2014
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company and the Board are devoted to achieving and maintaining
the highest standards of corporate governance as the Board believes
that effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholder value and safeguarding interests of the
shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Company has
adopted sound corporate governance principles that emphasise a quality
Board, effective internal control, stringent disclosure practices and
transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has also complied
with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, except with a deviation from paragraph A.5 of the
Code. Under paragraph A.5 of the Code, the Company should establish
a Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. Currently, the Company had
not established a Nomination Committee and had retained the
functions with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee has been delegated the functions of a Nomination
Committee since its listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in
2010. As such, the Board is of the view that the members of the
Remuneration Committee possess the necessary experience and
knowledge to discharge the functions of a Nomination Committee. The
Board shall review the composition and operation of the Board
Committees from time to time and shall consider establishing a
Nomination Committee if such need arises.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions adopted by
the Company.
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The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees the
operations and monitors the financial performance of the Group.
Management manages the businesses of the Group within the
delegated power and authority given by the Board. Management is
accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation.

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.

The Company Secretary or his assistant is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and Board Committee meetings. Draft minutes and written
resolutions will be circulated to all Board members or Board Committee
members for review and comment within a reasonable period of time.
Final version of the minutes and written resolutions will be provided for
record within a reasonable period of time and the signed copies are
kept in the Company’s minutes book maintained by the Company
Secretary for Directors’ inspection.

As at 31 December 2013 and at the date of this report, the Board
comprises of one executive Director, five non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. A description of the
Directors is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section from pages 23 to 28 and on the Company’s
website.

Annual Report 2013
T -=FFH

41



42

EBREZERARAR

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

PEEBWRE
Corporate Governance Report

R-FB—=F+_A=t—RARRAREEH -
E=ZgRETIIKE:

As at 31 December 2013 and at the date of this report, the Board
comprises of the following members:

BREEE RE-REBRER

REESERENEN REENAS
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
o= Directors to the Board as Director
HTES: Executive Director:
RIEREE(FTHEHAEZ)  Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer) —Z—=FPMANLH —T—=FAAF+EHH
9 April 2013 15 May 2013
FHITES: Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau HuntZt & Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) —E-TFWANLE ZE—=FHAT+HH
(F/E) 9 April 2010 15 May 2013
ZEREAEEFE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) —ZEZ-ZTEWMANAR —ZE—=%¢FAA+EHA
9 April 2010 15 May 2013
BERAE Mr. Tang Jun “E-ZTHFPNAAH —E—=FRA+HH
9 April 2010 15 May 2013
M5z =+ Ms. Tao Fang Fang —E-ZEF—-ANH ZE—-FRAT+WEH
8 January 2010 14 May 2012
B+ Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca ZEENFAATHE ZE—-FRATHEA
10 September 2009 14 May 2012
BIYFHTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
PRECIE o & Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael ZE-ZEFWANA ZE——FWA=TNH
9 April 2010 28 April 2011
BE AR S o A Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond ZE-ZTFMANA ZE——FMHAZTNA
9 April 2010 28 April 2011
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher#c 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher —E——F-A+H ZE——FWHA=FNH
10 February 2011 28 April 2011
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The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to time,
taking into account the requirements under the Listing Rules and the
scope and nature of operations of the Company, to ensure that the size
of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views and facilitate
effective decision making. The Directors come from diverse background
with varied expertise in finance, human resources and pharmaceutical
business fields. The Company has maintained on the Company’s website
and on the website of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its
Directors identifying their roles and functions.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills
and business experience to the Group. They also bring independent
judgement on issues of strategy, performance and risk through their
contribution to the Board meetings and to the Board Committees’
meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the
Board. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules. With reference to such confirmations, the
Company, to its best knowledge, considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors fulfill the guidelines on independence as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The chairman is responsible for managing the Board, steering
the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development
plans, ensuring the receipt of sufficient, complete and reliable
information by each Director and the receipt of reasonable explanations
for the issues raised at the Board meetings. The chief executive officer is
responsible for managing the business of the Company and
implementing policies, business objectives and plans formulated by the
Board, and is accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall
operation. The senior management team is responsible for the
day-to-day operations of the Group under the leadership of the chief
executive officer of the Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The executive Director has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing 9 April 2013. Each of
the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing 9 April 2013 except for Mr. Fritz
Heinrich Horlacher whose commencement date was 10 February 2014.
All Directors appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as
addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at
the first general meeting after appointment.
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At each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael, Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond
and Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming AGM.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company had not
established a Nomination Committee but had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
members from time to time identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships or
senior management. In considering the nomination of new Directors or
senior management, the Remuneration Committee will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates as well as the independence
requirement in the case of an independent non-executive Director. The
Remuneration Committee has adopted procedures for nomination of a
new Director or senior management, pursuant to which (1) an interview
will be conducted with the prospective candidates; and (2) the
Remuneration Committee will consider and, if thought fit, make suitable
recommendations to the Board.

Changes of Directors

Referring to the announcement dated 6 March 2013, the Board
announced that the executive director service contract of Mr. Xu Jun will
expire on 8 April 2013 (the “Termination Date”) and the Board had
received notice from Mr. Xu that he will not renew his service contract
due to the personal reason that he would like to devote more time to his
family. With effect from the Termination Date, Mr. Xu will no longer
serve as the executive Director, a member of the Executive Committee
and the CEO of the Group. The Board also announced on the same date
that Mr. Liu Bang Min will be appointed as the executive Director, a
member of the Executive Committee and the CEO of the Group with
effect from 9 April 2013.
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Changes of Senior Management
The Remuneration and Executive Committees have approved:

- the resignation of Mr. Liu Xiao Dong as senior vice president of the
Group, effective 31 January 2013;

- the promotion of Mr. Zhou Rong as senior vice president of the
Group, effective 6 March 2013; subsequently his further
promotion as the deputy general manager of Ningbo Liwah,
effective 30 November 2013;

- the promotion of Mr. Lu Yu Jiang as senior vice president of the
Group and general manager of Ningbo Liwah, effective 6 March
2013; subsequently his resignation as senior vice president of the
Group and general manager of Ningbo Liwah, effective 30
November 2013;

- the promotion of Mr. Xu Guang as director of sales of the Group
and deputy general manager of both Shenzhen Lansen and
Ningbo Lansen, effective 6 March 2013; subsequently his further
promotion as the general manager of Ningbo Lansen, effective 1
January 2014;

- the appointment of Mr. Chen Xiao Yun as vice president of
marketing and business development of the Group, effective 15
April 2013;

- the appointment of Mr. Zhu Di Han as human resources director of
the Group, effective 15 April 2013; and

- the resignation of Ms. Poon Lei Yung as senior vice president of the
Group, effective 31 October 2013.

Continuing professional development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company. The Company from time to time updates and provides
training to the Directors, and organises seminars on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and regulations
relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors will be provided with a
comprehensive briefing of the Group’s businesses by senior executives.
Continuing education and information are provided to the Directors
regularly to ensure that the Directors are apprised of the latest changes
in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its businesses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has organised
an in-house training session covering the topic of pharmaceutical
industry. All Directors attended the training. In addition, individual
directors also participated in other courses relating to the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director or further
enhancement of their professional development by way of attending
training courses or via online aids or reading relevant materials.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the year, the Board formalised the inclusion
of the following corporate governance duties into the terms of reference
of the Board:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s
employees and the Directors; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report.

Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity policy in
accordance with the requirement set out in the Code. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board'’s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, and professional experience. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.



EBREZERARAR

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

_I_I_/‘r/\—\

PEEBWRE
Corporate Governance Report

Exeel

ExcRificHer 5F5L MR -RE
HnegacH AKENEREEEe T H
MAEENER TN ERAESREER -
EEERABLER ZEFTBREDRAE
ENEREBYEEER -

BE_T-=Fft-_A=1t—HLFE EF

Board Meetings

The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of the Group
provides information to Directors on a regular basis regarding the
activities and development in the businesses of the Group. The Directors
have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors.

The Board held six meetings during the year ended 31 December 2013

SETTANNEE MESEFTHOHFEB R with the attendance of each Director as follows:
T
HESERE
BHITERRHY HE=E
No. of meetings
attended/No. of
2= Directors meetings held  Attendance rate
BITES: Executive Directors:
[NERGCEGFTHAE) Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 100%
(R=ZF—=FMANHE (appointed on 9 April 2013)
ZH)
REEEMR-_F—= Mr. Xu Jun 11 100%
79 A\ HEEE) (resigned on 8 April 2013)
FHITES: Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Huntst 4 (/&) Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) 6/6 100%
EEMEE(HEE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) 6/6 100%
mEEAE Mr. Tang Jun 6/6 100%
o555 2+ Ms. Tao Fang Fang 5/6 83%
E S [TBE R g Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 6/6 100%
BYFHITES: Independent non-executive Directors:
PR ECIE o A& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 6/6 100%
BORR S & Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 6/6 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 9t 2 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 6/6 100%
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THRESERSEBALRESAN T IR
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BFAE S SR 2 A E B A H AL 5

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days prior to
the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as much notice as is
reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the articles of association of the Company, a
Director who has a material interest in any contract, transaction,
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arrangement or any other kind of proposal put forward to the Board for
consideration, will abstain from voting on the relevant resolution and
such Director is not counted as quorum.

The Board has devised its specific written terms of reference setting out
its duties, responsibilities, powers and functions which include the
following:

- developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board;

- reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- taking responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
prevailing accounting standards and laws, approving the financial
statements and appointing and liaising with the Group’s external
auditors;

- reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report;

- liaising with all regulatory authorities and organisations on all
matters relating to the Group, and monitoring changes in their
policies relating to and affecting the Group; and

- ensuring accountability towards and sufficient communication
with the Group’s shareholders.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of the executive director and senior management was held to
discuss the performance of the executive director.

The Board also discussed the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company and duties performed by the Board and the Board
Committees (see below).
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Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee. Please see below for the
composition and responsibilities of the committees. Each committee
shall provide their recommendations to the Board based on their
respective terms of reference. The decisions of the Board on such
recommendations shall be final, unless otherwise stated in the terms of
reference of these committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors. Mr. Chan Kee
Huen, Michael, an independent non-executive Director, currently serves
as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
expected to meet regularly at least three times per year.

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The major duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the
following:

- oversee the relationship with the external auditor, including:

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor,
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and addressing any questions of
resignation or dismissal of such auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards; and

o developing and implementing policy on the engagement of
the external auditor to supply non-audit services;

- review and monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements, annual reports and half-year reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained therein; and

- review the effectiveness of the financial reporting and internal
control systems of the Group.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2013 with the attendance of each member as follows:

HEEBRE

LITEBRE HE=R
No. of meetings
attended/No. of

EREEEREHS Name of Audit Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
BRACIE LA (F ) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman) 3/3 100%
FEBRLEE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 3/3 100%
E TSR g Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 3/3 100%
BORR e & Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 3/3 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher %t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3/3 100%
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee had:

- reviewed with management and external auditor on the interim
results and annual results and related announcements including
the related disclosures, integrity of financial reporting and the
accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to submission to
the Board for approval;

- discussed with management on significant judgements affecting
the Group's consolidated financial statements;

- reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and recommended the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor;

- reviewed and discussed the internal control reports including the
status of implementing recommendations from the previous
reports; and

- reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors.
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond, an independent non-executive Director,
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is expected to meet regularly at least once per
year.
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The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and
authorities delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy and
placing such recommendations before the Board concerning the
total remuneration and/or benefits granted to the Directors and
senior management from time to time;

- to assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management;

- to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

- to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or
any applicable law;

- to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

- to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors and senior
management;

- to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and senior
management; and

- to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background, and
professional experience) of the Board at least annually; and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’ s corporate strategy.
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HE2-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE " %8B The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year
ZEERTTZREE  MBKEMNHERERN  ended 31 December 2013 with the attendance of each member as
U follows:
HESBEXIH
HITEBAXHY HE R
No. of meetings
Name of Remuneration attended/No. of
FHEEEKER SR Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
BR PR S A (£ ) Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond (Chairman) 3/3 100%
Stephen Burnau Hunt 5t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 3/3 100%
FEBEEE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 3/3 100%
PR 5048 7t A& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 3/3 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher %t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3/3 100%

BE-_ZT—=F1+_A=+—HLFE %M
REQHATESTRRREEBNRRETT
E (VRN EERSREZEBNFHER
TBARGEGFHmETSRHUEBEZS
(NETRBEFHNRR: (VI REFEZTT
EBRROETERL RN TERRBFX
EERERRTEFTNESTSRLERES -

Annual Report 2013
T -=FFR

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration
Committee (i) assessed the performance of the executive Director and
the senior management; (ii) reviewed the remuneration structure/
package of the Directors and the senior management, and made
recommendation to the Board on their remuneration; (iii) determined
policy for the nomination of Directors; (iv) discussed the implementation
of the Board diversity policy; and (v) make recommendation to the Board
on the proposed re-election of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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JEEZ=M  The following table shows the breakdown of Directors’ remuneration

for the year ended 31 December 2013:

F&2EW RIKER
ok ENER AR @
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  benefit plans
Fees inkind  contributions Total
Txn Txn S Txn
UsS$'000 Uss$'000 Uss$’'000 Uss$'000
HITES: Executive Directors:
NERR-FE—=FHANAEZF) Liu Bang Min (appointed on - 179 16 195
9 April 2013)
BER=-F—ZFHANAEE) Xu Jun (resigned on 8 April 2013) - 40 3 43
FRTES: Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - - 39
FTEE Lee Jin Yi - - - -
nE Tang Jun - 8 - 8
¥ % Tao Fang Fang - - - -
¥mx Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca - - - -
BUERTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
BiE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 32 - - 32
BB Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 32 - - 32
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 29 - - 29
132 227 19 378

BE-T-=F+-A=t-AL%F
1A SRR EERI RS HMS

[E=m#AE  The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band

for the year ended 31 December 2013:

—E2—=

2013
AE

No of individuals

= Z129,000%E T *
129,0013€ 7T £193,500% 7T

Nil-US$129,000*
US$129,001-US$193,500
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Name of Executive
Committee members

HITEEERENS

* Mr. Liu Xiao Dong resigned from the senior vice president of the Group, effective
31 January 2013; and Ms.
president of the Group, effective 31 October 2013; and Mr. Lu Yu lJiang

Poon Lei Yung resigned from the senior vice

resigned from the senior vice president of the Group and general manager of
Ningbo Liwah, effective 30 November 2013. The remuneration of Mr. Liu, Ms.
Poon and Mr. Lu were included in the band ranged from nil to US$129,000.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Company consists of one executive
Director and three non-executive Directors. Mr. Lee Jin Yi, a non-
executive Director, currently serves as the chairman of the Executive
Committee.

The Board has established the Executive Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and
authorities delegated by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Executive Committee include reviewing the financials and
financial-related matters, assisting in developing annual and medium- to
long-term corporate strategies, reviewing and approving new business
development plans, and reviewing and approving research and
development projects.

Executive Committee members normally meet every month to keep
abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group and to
monitor and ensure that management carries out the directions and
strategies set by the Board.

The Executive Committee held ten meetings during the year ended 31
December 2013 with the attendance of each member as follows:

HEEFRE
HTEBERY
No. of meetings
attended/No. of
meetings held

HE R

Attendance rate

TEBEEE(ER) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman) 10/10 100%

BEREER=ZF—=% Mr. Liu Bang Min 9/9 100%
/9 AN HEZ(F) (appointed on 9 April 2013)

BELRER=-_F—Z=F Mr. Xu Jun 1/1 100%
P9 A HEET) (resigned on 8 April 2013)

(Gl Ms. Tao Fang Fang 10/10 100%

E L TBE g Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 10/10 100%
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also
acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements for the Group are published in a timely manner.

BDO Limited acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
61 to 62 in this report.

Management has provided to all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance and position in detail.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the Group's auditor until
the conclusion of next AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees paid/payable to
BDO Limited in respect of audit and non-audit services were as follows:

et ERE A

PR 7% 1% & Services rendered Fee paid/payable
FEn

Us$'000

% B R 5 Audit services 142
FZERD Non-audit services 31

HEBREIEEREHBEIINTHE
B e E At B X AR 75 -

DREWE
REAMEBEHEALEHETENE LS
BERER HREFTANENABIERB K
RREEFTTHRNIERF -

The non-audit services mainly consisted of interim review and other
professional services in relation to the connected transactions.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Mr. Mui Chi Hung, plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
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All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company Secretary has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control and Risk Assessment

The Board is responsible for the internal control system of the Group
and has the responsibility for reviewing its effectiveness including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board is committed
to implement an effective and sound internal control system to
safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets.

To further strengthen the internal control of the Group, an internal
control department was established. Several department heads of the
Company met with the internal control department regularly to ensure a
sound internal control system is in place and maintained. To enhance the
knowledge of relevant staff of the Group, training will be provided to
them in the matter of relevant rules and applicable laws as and when
appropriate.

During the year, the internal control department has performed internal
control reviews covering certain key control areas including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
The Company considered that the internal control department is
sufficient at this moment and will consider establishing an internal audit
function in the future if necessary.

Also, management has analysed the control environment and risk
assessment, assessed the various controls implemented and agreed with
the Board on the scope of review over the system of internal controls.
The approach of the review includes discussion with relevant
management and staff members, reviewing relevant documentation of
the internal control system and evaluating findings on any deficiencies in
the design of the internal controls and developing recommendations for
improvement, where appropriate. On the other hand, the Board
continues to review, from time to time, the impact of development of
business and operations on the system of internal control to evaluate the
need for setting up an internal audit function for the Group.
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Management has reported the results of the reviews to the Audit
Committee for its evaluation on the effectiveness of the system.
Meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss the findings and
the results of the reviews which were endorsed for reporting to the
Board. The Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, the present internal controls and risk management
processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business. The Board will continue to ensure that
appropriate review of the systems and procedures is being carried out
by management from time to time to maintain a high standard of
internal control and will make appropriate changes to the internal
control system, if necessary.

Inside information
With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company

- is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO and
the overriding principle that information which is expected to be
inside information should be announced once it is the subject of a
decision;

- has set up an inside information control team to supervise inside
information matters and report to the Board in a timely manner;

- has implemented its own policy and reporting system based on
Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission; and

- has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs.

Directors’ and officers’ liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance
for all the Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year 2013/2014. The insurance covers them against costs, charges,
expenses and liabilities incurred arising out of corporate activities.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from the
shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects the
shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates their
suggestions to the Company.

Our investor relations activities include:

- regular meetings (one-to-one/group meetings, roadshows or site
visits) with analysts and investors;

- conferences with analysts and the press to announce the
Company’s results;

- the holding of an AGM which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board;

- the publication of announcements, interim reports, annual reports
and/or circulars on a timely basis via the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites; and

- the availability of the latest information of the Group on the
Company's website.

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Shareholder’s Rights
The AGM provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and raise
questions to our Directors, management and the external auditor.

The Company will arrange for the Chairman of the Board and the
respective chairman of each of the Board Committees to attend the
AGM to exchange views with shareholders and answer their questions.

Any shareholder is encouraged and entitled to attend the AGM,
provided that their shares have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company. The notice of AGM will be given to all
shareholders at least 20 clear business days or 21 clear days (whichever
is longer) before the meeting.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2013 annual
general meeting (“2013 AGM"), held on 15 May 2013 at London Room,
3/F., Nexxus Building, 77 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. All
Directors and the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited,
attended the 2013 AGM.
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At the 2013 AGM, separate resolutions including declaration of final
dividend, the re-election of Directors, the re-appointment of auditor, the
authorisation to grant the general mandate to issue and repurchase of
shares were proposed. The Company adopted poll voting for all
resolutions.

All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2013 AGM were passed. The
Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
was appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at
that meeting. The results of the voting by poll were declared at the
meeting and published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The way by which shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM")

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Company’s articles of
association shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding at the date
of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the
paid-up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an EGM.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the EGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of two months from the
said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at the
Company'’s principal place of business at Suites 1203—-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
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The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
To put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM, the shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company’s Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration of the
proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at an AGM or EGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

. At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include 10 business
days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution
of the Company in an EGM.

° At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20 business
days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of
the Company in an EGM or any resolution of the Company in an
AGM.

Investor Relations Contacts

The Company values feedbacks from shareholders, investors and the
public. Enquiries and proposals are welcome and can be put to the
Company via the following means:

Hong Kong
Please contact our Company Secretary at:

By phone : (852) 2828 9285

By post . Suite 1203—4, 12/F,, Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

By e-mail . ir@lansen.com.cn

The PRC

Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:

By phone : (86) 755 2532 3102

By post : Room 1804, Tower D, KK100, 139 Hongbao Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen, PRC (Post code 518001)

By e-mail . ir@lansen.com.cn

The latest investor relations information is available on the Company’s
website at www.lansen.com.cn.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
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25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
EEE : +852 2218 8288 EHTFEEP1115
55K : +852 2815 2239 kZ251

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 63 to 144, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial

statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number: P05440

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013

—F-=F —E——HF
2013 2012
Bt 5E FEx FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000

KA Revenue 6 95,074 93,844
B A Cost of sales (42,836) (39,420)
EF Gross profit 52,238 54,424
HAb YA Other income 6 2,609 2,831
HERDHEAX Selling and distribution expenses (27,733) (31,258)
TEHRX Administrative expenses (11,970) (9,828)
Fe— gl Profit from operations 8 15,144 16,169
B 7% B AR Finance costs 9 (1,653) (1,005)
FEAE B & QT 2 R R s A Share of post-tax profit of an

associate 1,590 1,402
R B 15 %4 A& F Profit before income tax 15,081 16,566
FTiEfiA X Income tax expense 1 (3,390) (2,568)
FERA Profit for the year 11,691 13,998
H 2 [ UK & Other comprehensive income
HZAEEN DI E B ZHE - Item that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss:
BMEBINEBEFCEREE Exchange differences arising on

translation of foreign

operations 3,479 827
FEAEMEERE (HNKRHIE) Other comprehensive income for

the year, net of tax 3,479 827
FEXEHKEAHE Total comprehensive income

for the year 15,170 14,825
ARREBAEMLER Profit attributable to owners

of the Company 12 11,691 13,998
AATBEEAELHEZEWEZMAE  Total comprehensive income

attributable to owners of

the Company 15,170 14,825
BREFN—ELXRES Earnings per share

— basic and diluted 14 2.83% flli cents 3.4 1l cents
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R=—Z—=%F+=H=+—H Asat 31 December 2013

—EB-=F ——F
2013 2012
B 5E FEx FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME BWMEREZE Property, plant and equipment 16 35,012 29,667
AN L ERIE Prepaid land lease payment 17 2,440 2,437
mEE Intangible assets 18 13,301 11,164
Fﬁﬁi Goodwill 19 6,824 6,824
A ENNC o X Interest in an associate 20 34,109 32,031
91,686 82,123
REBEE Current assets
Ay Inventories 21 17,185 11,823
5 & H b & W R Trade and other receivables 22 57,465 55,152
TEN + HAE & FRIE Prepaid land lease payment 17 59 58
Al Y B 7% 18 Tax recoverable 500 —
EEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 23 14,458 8,325
BehIRE&EEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 11,029 11,381
100,696 86,739
wWEE Total assets 192,382 168,862
BEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EXREE Capital and reserves
AR EBAEBMEESR Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
AR AR Share capital 24 4,150 4,150
% 15 % B Share premium 25 39,645 49,568
SN BEE 1% 1 Foreign exchange reserve 25 13,460 9,981
5 TE R Statutory reserve 25 6,650 5,347
RE = Retained profits 46,745 36,357
B Total equity 110,650 105,403
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R=—Z—=%F+=—H=+—H Asat 31 December 2013

—E—-=F —E—F
2013 2012
ihg=s FEx FEx
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
EERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 27 378 181
REBEE Current liabilities
BE Borrowings 26 59,152 42,255
mEHIBEEE Current tax liabilities 1,566 968
5K HMEMNRE Trade and other payables 28 20,636 20,055
81,354 63,278
HWEE Total liabilities 81,732 63,459
BERRARE Total equity and liabilities 192,382 168,862
RBEERE Net current assets 19,342 23,461
HEERARBARS Total assets less current
liabilities 111,028 105,584

FEIEMMEMPBREREN T —NF=A

AETRERE:

signed on its behalf by:

EF

Director

AER
LIU Bang Min

BEF
Director

B

The financial statements on pages 63 to 144 were approved and
THNREEESHEREETE - WHEAT  authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2014 and are

YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca
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R=—Z—=%F+=H=+—H Asat 31 December 2013

—E—-=F —E——4F
2013 2012
B 5 FErx FEx
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
NN NG Interest in a subsidiary 15 25,020 25,020
REBEE Current assets
JRE L2 Bt B8 A B 5k 1B Amount due from a subsidiary 15 16,998 27,248
TE SR IA Prepayments 19 29
ReRBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 3 3
17,020 27,280
HEE Total assets 42,040 52,300
EaRkEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EXREE Capital and reserves
ERARIEBAEGEESR Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
& 7 Share capital 24 4,150 4,150
1% 15 % B Share premium 25 39,645 49,568
RitEE Accumulated losses 25 (1,955) (1,596)
B Total equity 41,840 52,122
REBEE Current liabilities
JEEt R IA Accruals 28 200 178
wEeE Total liabilities 200 178
HEZKAE Total equity and liabilities 42,040 52,300
REBEEFRE Net current assets 16,820 27,102
HEERRBER Total assets less current
liabilities 41,840 52,122
EE EE
Director Director
2ER EMmR
LIU Bang Min YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013

KA ROEE SERE EERE REER R

Foreign
Share Share exchange Statutory Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity

TET Fxx F=7 TET Fxx F=7
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000

BZE-Z2——-%1+=-HA=+—H VYear ended 31 December

LEFEE 2012

M-E——4—B—HZ#&#% Balance at 1 January 2012 4,150 58,330 9,154 3,986 23,720 99,340
% & (Ff 5£13) Dividends (note 13) — (8,762) — — — (8,762)
BEAEANETRS Transactions with owners — (8,762) — — — (8,762)
Eaapiawil Profit for the year — — — — 13,998 13,998
Hfth 2 W Other comprehensive

income — — 827 — — 827
FRNEEW = BRE Total comprehensive income

for the year — — 827 — 13,998 14,825
EEREETHE Appropriations to statutory

reserve — — — 1,361 (1,361) —

W—ZE——#F+=-HA=+—H Balance at 31 December
2R 2012 4,150 49,568 9,981 5,347 36,357 105,403

BE-Z—=%+=-HA=+—H8 Year ended 31 December

LR 2013

RZTE—=F—H—H2Z#% Balance at 1 January 2013 4,150 49,568 9,981 5,347 36,357 105,403
& 8 (Bt 5513) Dividends (note 13) — (9,923) — — — (9,923)
HMEBANETRS Transactions with owners — (9,923) — — — (9,923)
F R Profit for the year — — — - 11,691 11,691
H th & T W 5 Other comprehensive

income — — 3,479 — — 3,479
FRE2H W B Total comprehensive income

for the year — — 3,479 — 11,691 15,170
BEREATHE Appropriations to statutory

reserve — — — 1,303 (1,303) —

RZZ—=F+=-A=+—H Balance at 31 December
3 2013 4,150 39,645 13,460 6,650 46,745 110,650
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HZE=—ZF—=F+=H=1+—HLEFE For the Year ended 31 December 2013

—E—-=F ——4F
2013 2012
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
REREXEBKZ2RERE Cash flows from operating activities
bR BT 15 B A & F Profit before income tax 15,081 16,566
AE Adjustments for:
£ R B T BAR Finance costs recognised 1,653 1,005
B U A Interest income 417) (288)
FEAL B L R B) 2 BRI R Share of post-tax profit of an associate (1,590) (1,402)
BB GRIBRE(BE), B (Reversal of)/Provision for impairment of
trade receivables (568) 126
H b JE Y 5k B R E B D Reversal of impairment of other
receivables 4) (1)
ME - BMEREBTE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,783 1,520
TE T b 76 & R IE # 3R Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payment 64 62
LEYE BERREEBIE Losses on disposals of property, plant
and equipment 137 1
| EEME Write off of intangible assets 328 —
B E Amortisation of intangible assets 597 582
FREFERmERE (FO) Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment of
obsolete inventories 95 21)
BESEHR 2 LEEF Operating profit before working capital
changes 17,159 18,150
FEEmM Increase in inventories (5,060) (2,109)
B 5N H b e Y SR 1 0 Increase in trade and other receivables (2,933) (9,556)
B 5 K H b FE S ZIB 18 A0 Increase in trade and other payables 19 4,616
HEELEZH T Cash generated from operations 9,185 11,101
ERNHE Interest paid (1,733) (1,313)
BETEM Income tax paid (3,126) (2,903)
MEFTHELE R FHE Net cash generated from operating
activities 4,326 6,885
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE=—ZF—=F+=H=1+—HLEFE For the Year ended 31 December 2013

—F-=F ——4F
2013 2012
FEx FEx
US$'000 Us$'000
RERETHZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
[REEREE CERREE S il Increase in pledged bank deposits (5,822) (958)
B4 3 EL B M FOR 7 (B8 in) Decrease/(Increase) in pledged other
receivables 2,670 (3,261)
BEVE BELRZB Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (6,355) (7,767)
EEBVEE Purchase of intangible assets (2,725) (1,731)
HEWME BMELRBENBKEA  Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
and equipment 63 9
FEEBE AR EIINER Purchase of additional interest in an
associate — (2,202)
mMEE R FEE Capital contribution to an associate — (4,637)
e B Bt & 2 B IR B Dividend received from an associate 426 4,174
2 A B Interest received 417 288
RETEHE 2 F5E Net cash used in investing activities (11,326) (16,085)
REMETBH2EHERE Cash flows from financing activities
BESHIEA Proceeds from borrowings 64,986 34,168
EEEERE Repayment of borrowings (48,675) (20,500)
BNk E Dividends paid (9,923) (8,762)
BEFBELE RS FE Net cash generated from financing
activities 6,388 4,906
HeRREEEBMZ FRD Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (612) (4,294)
FNRELREFEDY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year 11,381 15,592
EXEHH s TE Effects of exchange rate changes 260 83
FREEGRASEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year 11,029 11,381
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Corporate Information

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted limited liability company incorporated in Cayman Islands
on 10 September 2009 and its shares have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 7 May 2010. The Company’s registered office
is located at Clifton House, 75 Fort Street P. O. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal
place of business is located at Suites 1203—4, 12/F, Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with
the Company referred to as the “Group”) are manufacturing and
trading of pharmaceutical products. The principal activities of the
Group are carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and are set out in note 32. There were no significant changes in the
Group's operations during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH"), a company incorporated in Bermuda and whose
shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The directors
consider the ultimate holding company to be Cathay International
Enterprises Limited which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI").

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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— T —=%F+= A=+ —H L% For the year ended 31 December 2013

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis. The measurement bases are fully described
in the accounting policies set out below. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in United States Dollars (“US$"), which is
the same as the functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.

Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs

3.1 Adoption of new and revised IFRSs — effective 1

January 2013

IFRSs (Amendments)
IFRSs (Amendments)
IFRSs (Amendments)
Amendments to IFRS 1
Amendments to IFRS 7
IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IFRS 13
IAS 19 (Revised 2011)

IAS 27 (Revised 2011)

IAS 28 (Revised 2011)

Amendments to IAS 1

(Revised)
IFRIC — Interpretation
20

Annual Improvements 2009-2011
Cycle

Annual Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Annual Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle

Government loans

Disclosure — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

Except as explained below, the adoption of the new and
revised IFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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3.

Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.1

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs — effective 1
January 2013 (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 (Revised), Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 1 (Revised)
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to IAS 1, the
Group's “statement of comprehensive income” is renamed
as the “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income”. The amendments to IAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. Furthermore, the amendments to IAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated
on the same basis — the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income
either before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of
items of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to
IAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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3.

Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.1

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs — effective 1
January 2013 (Continued)

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and SIC Int-12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 changes the definition of control
such that an investor has control over an investee when a) it
has power over the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and c)
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All these
criteria must be met for an investor to have control over an
investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance
has been included in IFRS 10 to explain when an investor has
control over an investee.

The directors of the Company made an assessment as at
the date of initial application of IFRS 10, it is concluded that
the adoption does not change any of the control conclusion
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with other
entities.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of IFRS 12 has resulted
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements (please see notes 20 and 32 for details). As the
new standard affects only disclosure, there is no effect on
the Group'’s financial position and performance.
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3.

Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New and revised IFRSs that have been issued and have

been early adopted

Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

The amendments limit the requirements to disclose the
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit
("CGU") to those periods in which an impairment loss has
been recognised or reversed, and expand the disclosures
where the recoverable amount of impaired assets or CGUs
has been determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal. The amendments are effective for annual periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2014. The Group has early
adopted the amendments to IAS 36 in the current period.
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Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.3 New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective
The following new and revised IFRSs have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

s AER o Group.
B IR B 7 R £ “Z-TERFCT-CF IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010-2012
(E3T) ?@E@E’\JEEE&@ Cycle?
BIPR B i B 5 22 B E--FE%-= IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 20112013
(&7 FEHHFE IR Cycle?
BERGBRELNEN 2BIA IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
BRI REEAEY EERERE IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts*
BERUBREENFE  Hheq Amendments to IFRS 9, Hedge Accounting
% ERMHES IFRS 7 and 1AS 39
ERETH REIBE;
ERE395 R BT
BIPR B 5 B 5 22 B REEE Amendments to IFRS  Investment Entities’
F10% - BRHBR 10, IFRS 12 and IAS
SEAFFRER 27 (2011)
SHENZTFHE
AZE--F)
BRgERE0Re TREMH: Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
B (ZE-—F) BB (2011) Contributions?
BReielEnsy cREEAHERAR Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
B3] Financial Liabilities'

IR G e 3950

ERTA HARTE

Amendments to IAS 39  Financial Instruments: Recognition

B3 —{TEIAMERR and Measurement — Novation
Eapak-Eiifig of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting'
BARMHEREER HE IFRIC 21 Levies'
ZELREENT
! RZT—NFEF-—A—HIZ2E&RABH 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
FEHRER
2 RZZ—NOFLtA—BRZEHABH 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
FE B AR
3 RZZE—ME+L A —Asiz&MIAH 3 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions occurring,

FEOMABLENZ I ER

4 RZT—RF

—A—HRZRERK
FREABBER

on or after 1 July 2014
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
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3.

Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.3 New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)
Information on new and revised IFRSs that are expected to
affect the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

Under IFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial
assets measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending
on the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. Fair value gains or losses will be recognised in
profit or loss except for those non-trade equity investments,
which the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains
and losses in other comprehensive income. IFRS 9 carries
forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from IAS 39, except
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of that liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS
9 retains the requirements in IAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of IFRS 9 in the future will have a significant impact
on the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities.
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Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.3 New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
The amendments to IAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the
meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-
off” and ‘simultaneous realisation and settlement’.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to IAS 32 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any financial assets
and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment losses. The result
of the subsidiary is accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company'’s profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described in policy for associate.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, an interest in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group'’s interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the interest in an associate, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s interest in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with 1AS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other
than properties under construction) less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis. The major categories of property, plant and
equipment are depreciated as follows:

Building and plant 20-50 years
Machinery 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Costs include professional fees, direct costs of construction and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Prepaid land lease payment
Prepaid land lease payment represent up-front payments to acquire
long term interest in the usage of land. These payments are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on straight-line method over the lease
terms between 48 to 50 years.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development activities

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are available
for use. The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in administrative expenses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent impairment accumulated losses.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development activities (Continued)

Research and development costs

An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on an
individual project is recognised provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

J demonstration of technical feasibility of completing the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated:;

o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

. sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.

Development expenditure which does not meet the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life are
amortised on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
when the products are available for use. The amortisation expense
is recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses. Capitalised development costs with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment annually.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that have a finite
useful life to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of any depreciation or amortisation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Company/Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These (including trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised
cost using effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

o a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group'’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of six months to one year, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company/
Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including borrowings and trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investment with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business and the use by others of the Group’s
assets yielding interest, net of discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be reliably measured, revenue is recognised
as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and the title
is passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on time basis on the principal
outstanding at effective interest rate.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the assets or liabilities is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the Company/group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional currency”)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions occur.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. US$)
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at
the rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the term of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on straight-line method over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Retirement benefit costs
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (“MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum mandatory
contribution as required by the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. The
contributions recognised in respect to defined contribution benefit
plans are expenses as they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally
of a short term nature.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of assets are included in liabilities
as deferred government grants in the consolidated statement of
financial position and are recognised in profit or loss on straight-
line method over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under
“Other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member to that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segments
under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under IFRS, except that:

o share of results of associate accounted for using equity
method

o income tax

o finance costs

o corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating

segment are not included in arriving at the operating results
of the operating segment.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on
assessment of the recoverability of receivables from debtors. The
identification of the impairment requires management judgements
and estimates where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of the receivables and impairment losses/reversal
of impairment losses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The management estimates the development costs, which
represented the intellectual property rights generated internally in
pharmaceutical industry, have indefinite useful lives as they believe
that there is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which
these intellectual property rights is expected to provide cash flows
and these intellectual property rights can be renewable in a period
of time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in the
market.

The estimated useful lives of the exclusive distribution rights
and technical know-how were made by the management
with reference to the legal limits on the use of the assets and
the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of intangible assets. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations, changed
customer behavior and competitor actions in response to industry
cycles.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Useful lives of intangible assets (Continued)

Management will increase the amortisation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or will recognise
impairment loss when future cash flows are less than expectation
and fall below the carrying amount of the intangible assets.

Current income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxations.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2013,
the carrying amount of goodwill is US$6,824,000. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment losses for intangible assets are recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use, are determined with reference to
the best information available at the end of the reporting date.
Changing the assumptions selected by the Group’s management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the operating
and growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group’s financial position and results
of operations. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of
intangible assets is US$13,301,000.
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013
6. WARHEMUA Revenue and Other Income
REBRFANKRA (BIREENEERR) An analysis of the Group’s revenue, which is also the Group’s
REMBRAB AT turnover, and other income for the years are as follows:
—E—-=fF —E—_F
2013 2012
FEx Fx
US$'000 Us$'000
HEERHBA Revenue from sales of goods 95,074 93,844
Hhug A Other income
FRATH EWA Bank interest income 417 288
BT & Government grants 1,990 2,169
Hit Others 202 374
2,609 2,831
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The Group received grants from the local government in the PRC as
recognition of the Group’s performance and development of high-
technology pharmaceutical products. The grants received were not
subject to any conditions.

Segment Information

Information reported to the executive directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance based on the
types of goods delivered.

With the continuous growth and expansion of the plant extract
and healthcare products division, the CODM considered the
necessity of separate reporting of this division, which was
grouped under “Other pharmaceuticals” in previous years. With
the changes of the information reported internally to the CODM
for the allocation of resources and performance of business, the
existing reportable segment have therefore been converted into
three reportable segments. The Group has also renamed one of
the reportable segments from “Rheumatic specialty prescription
western pharmaceuticals” to “Specialty pharmaceuticals” in the
current year.

The measure of segment profit was revised to treat the selling and
distribution expenses as allocated expenses under each segment.
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Segment Information (Continued)

With the changes in the structure and composition of the
reportable segments, certain comparative figures in the segment
information for the year ended 31 December 2012 has been
reclassified and revised to present segment profit on a consistent
basis.

The Group's reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8 are
as follows:

—  Specialty pharmaceuticals: development, production and
sale of specialty pharmaceuticals mainly used in the field of
rheumatology and dermatology

— Plant extract and healthcare products: development,
production and sale of Chinese medicine extracts and
healthcare products

—  Other pharmaceuticals

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results from

continuing operations by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BRI
ENER REEM Hitt % m st
Plant extract
Specialty  and healthcare Other
pharmaceuticals products pharmaceuticals Total
TER TER TER TER
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BTYEHRHBUA Reportable segment revenue 57,571 28,720 8,783 95,074
BTE2HH R Reportable segment profit 19,217 4,436 852 24,505
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7. DHER(E) 7. Segment Information (Continued)
He—Z2——F+-_A=+—HILtFE For the year ended 31 December 2012 (restated)
(& &E5))
EMRBRR
ERESD REE® H fth B2 FE
Plant extract
Specialty and healthcare Other
pharmaceuticals products pharmaceuticals Total
FEx FEx FEx FE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BTYE/RDBWA Reportable segment revenue 61,390 23,280 9,174 93,844
BTE2HDHBE Reportable segment profit 18,389 3,872 905 23,166
AEBREDHEENRBHEYFIRE The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
EHRMAEEF B EBENHERNT reconciled to the Group's key financial figures as presented in the
financial statements as follows:
—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
FErR FEx
USs$'000 Us$'000
(g &E75)
(restated)
=B Profit or loss
AT E2FHD R F Reportable segment profit 24,505 23,166
FEAG B & R B W BR B 1% 5 T Share of post-tax profit of an associate 1,590 1,402
E bR 5D BB A Other income not allocated 2,609 2,831
RAAOBRAX Expenses not allocated (11,970) (9,828)
81 7% B AN Finance costs (1,653) (1,005)
B BT 15 B B Profit before income tax 15,081 16,566
L i e ON L =b =T Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
BEHRA - REELES DRENE (- from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the
— 4 fE) o current year (2012: nil).

A IR 12013
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013
7. 7HER(E) 7.
%%’* BD B & 5T R BE BT sR 4P M AR 5

MEERR - BATEHRD & E
bx“*ﬁﬁ’]%%'ﬁ)ﬁiiﬁ’*& DSRS0 TS
FMATETEREERD BELRRFMH
REmEtERE -

FA-AEERBRAZEFNI0% (ZT—=
F15%)RAMEWRIAREEZER]D
HAEmE—2F  REEEH A5E
B S EWFIBEN21% (2 — 5 : 21%)
RERZEE -

AEEOBAB D ETIIHE:

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.
Reportable segment profit represents the gross profit less selling
and distribution expenses by each segment. This is the measure
reported to the executive directors for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

During the year, 10% (2012: 15%) of the Group’s revenue was
derived from a single customer in the “Plant extract and healthcare
products” segment. As at the reporting date, 21% (2012: 21%) of
the Group'’s trade receivables was due from this customer.

The Group's revenues are divided into the following geographical
areas:

—_E—-= —E——%F

2013 2012

FEx FTE

US$°000 US$'000

R (E 5 The PRC (domicile) 89,743 90,156
BERN Overseas 5,331 3,688
95,074 93,844

EEMM R BIARHERF LN EE R
MUBEREE ARAR/RASHET
MW ZREZERAR  MAKEEES
WA EEFMER - AKRENTBLZER

THEBBMRPE - Bit - HEREER
BA 7GR RS8R [ & 7 2R P AR TE B9
BEMERAEASTENEHRAR -

RAETE  REBOFAFRDEE
8T 1t e -

MR EERARTERRESHE
Fiﬂﬂébﬁﬂ it 2 5 B A
# o

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Cayman Islands where the Group does not have any activities,
the Group has the majority of its operations and workforce in the
PRC, and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group's country
of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as required by IFRS 8
“Operating Segments”.

Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were located in
the PRC in both years.

No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they are
not regularly provided to the executive directors.
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Profit from Operations
The Group's profit from operations has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

—E—=5 —ET——%F
2013 2012
FER FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
% RN B 2 Auditor’s remuneration 183 168
ME - -BMEREZHEITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,783 1,520
PREE T S E R, (B E)(MFE) Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment of
obsolete inventories (note) 95 (21)
B S MEWGRIE R E (B E),#14%  (Reversal of)/Provision for impairment of
trade receivables (568) 126
E b JE YR T8 R B #E Bl Reversal of impairment of other
receivables (4) )
PE &R () F 8 Net exchange loss/(gain) 14 (237)
WREAXNEEKAR Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses 41,789 38,199
THREFHLCEHEHERS Operating lease charges in respective of
land and building 504 446
T 3% Bk X Research and development costs 1,342 928
HEME BELRSBHEIE Losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 137 1
| A EWE Write off of intangible assets 328 —
TE T £ b FE & R IE 5 Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payment 64 62
A E# Amortisation of intangible assets 597 582
BETIXRA(BREESFHM) Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration)
—IEkF — Wages and salaries 8,628 7708
— TR R E — Defined contribution plan 1,716 963
10,344 8,671

Mk AR FEEMAELINREFERER

Bl TSR RA il ET R EE NGB -
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Note: The reversal of impairment of obsolete inventories arising from an

increase in net realisable value was caused by the increase in estimated

scrap value.
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B % B A 9. Finance Costs

—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
FER F=ET
US$’000 Us$'000

BRAFANBHEENIRITEE  Interest on bank borrowings wholly
A repayable within five years 1,733 1,313

BOETATEEZIRERMERNEFE  Less: Interest capitalised included in
construction in progress (80) (308)
1,653 1,005

EENIEREHFALTHNTMH

ESHM

ENfEENTARBAEENFHHEREN

Individuals

Directors’ remuneration

10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

The aggregate amount of remuneration paid and payable to the

™ directors of the Company are as follows:
e 2R BRER
wne BNER sHEfR mzt
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and benefits benefit plans
Fees inkind contributions Total
TER TER TER FE=x
USs$'000 US$'000 US$'000  US$000
HE-T—=F+-FR=+—HIL¥E Yearended 31 December 2013
WiTES: Executive directors:
FAER(MZZ—=FMANBEZE) LuBang Min (appointed on 9 April 2013) — 179 16 195
BRERZZ-ZE0AN\HEE) Xu Jun (resigned on 8 April 2013) - 40 3 43
FHTESE: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 — — 39
= Lee Jin Yi — - — —
5B Tang Jun — 8 — 8
i85 Tao Fang Fang - - - -
Emr Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca — — — —
BUFRTES: Independent non-executive directors:
B E Chan Kee Huen, Michael 32 — — 32
R Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 32 — — 32
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 29 - - 29
132 227 19 378
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013

10. EENAERSHFALTHEHH

10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

(#8) Individuals (Continued)
EEHM(E) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)
e 2EA RIKREF
e EMREH BEILE @at
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  benefit plans
Fees inkind  contributions Total
FTEx FTEn TEx FE=x
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000  US$'000
BHE-T—-+-RA=+—HIEE Yearended 31 December 2012
BTESE: Executive directors:
RE XuJun — 203 17 220
AER(HN=_F——F+=-A+WA Liu Xiao Dong
) (resigned on 14 December 2012) — 19 14 133
FBTESE: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 — — 39
ZEE Lee Jin Yi — — — —
BB Tang Jun — 8 — 8
&5 Tao Fang Fang — — — —
Bmr Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca — — — —
BUFRTES: Independent non-executive directors:
MR E Chan Kee Huen, Michael 32 — — 32
B Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 31 — — 31
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 29 — — 29
131 330 31 492
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BE

10.

EENLERSHALTHETH
(%)

AEBRBHAL
AABRBHALTBEARA-—BES (=
T-—F WA BENFHFERL
XARANTRIR « BTEA (=5
CR)EBHFALTOFMABOT

— T —=%F+= A=+ —H L% For the year ended 31 December 2013

10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

Individuals (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals consisted of one (2012: two)
director(s) of the Company, details of whose remuneration are
reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of remuneration
of the remaining four (2012: three) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

—E—= —E——%F
2013 2012
FEx TFETT
Us$'000 Us$'000
Fe  EMNMEYRET Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 484 316
R ARTE F & B4 5K Retirement benefit plans contributions 41 24
st Total 525 340

SN FLEBEIFEEALTOFIN F A
T

The remuneration paid to each of the above non-director
individuals were within the following bands:

—E—=F —ET——%F

2013 2012

AE ANE

No of No of

individuals individuals

129,000 JT Nil-US$129,000 3 2
129,0013€ 7T £193,5003% 7T US$129,001-US$193,500 1 1

HE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—"8BN=_ZT—
—FE+ A=t HIEFE HESEE
e REERETMH MO HE -

HE-_ZT—=Ft+-"A=+—HE=-Z—
“F+_ A=+ —HLFE  AEERF
N ERESEREMNAEERHALTS
NE  fEEMAREBR S INALRES
BH R B R B (E o

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012, no emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or compensation for loss of office during
the year.
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. AEBMAX 11. Income Tax Expense
—E—=fF —E——F
2013 2012
FER FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
EHIHIE — PR EER Current tax — PRC
(IZEmEHD Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")

— F A IR — tax for the year 3,142 2,564

—BEFEREDIRE — under provision in respect of prior
54 4
3,196 2,568
i FE R 18 (9 5£27) Deferred tax (note 27) 194 —
B8R Income tax expense 3,390 2,568

EPBELANERTGENHBADRASE
B R P S PR R R AR R A

sty
B o
Ea

RIBFPBECEMSTE(EMBRIE]D
LHEEHMA  FREEBARNHEA
25% (ZF — 4 :25%)

Efh—MaEaRIgERREET =68
BEMGHRENMBAR  EBER
TR CZFEEHEIBINE25% M IZER
xS ERBATEHSFREGERN
WBARBE T —EF—A—AK=H
15%HEBEPEMERE o

AEE-EHRERARRIEBEELE
REFEIIERELEZMINEDLEFRF
BE REBREBEFERBKERIZD
EEEMNFERLE EMF2BEEMEE
PRISHL - BER=FR¥ R EMEHR
EHREER T —=ZFFH25%NEFE
& o
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Tax on assessable profits arising in the PRC has been calculated at
the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the tax jurisdiction in which
the Group operates.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2012: 25%).

One of the subsidiaries operate in Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
and enjoyed preferential EIT rates, its tax rate gradually reached
the standard rate at 25% in 2012. Another subsidiary has been
certified as a new high technology enterprise in the PRC and
enjoyed a preferential EIT rate of 15% starting from 1 January
2010.

A subsidiary of the Group is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
in accordance with the Income Tax Law of the PRC for Enterprise
with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises and is entitled
to full exemption from EIT for two years and a 50% reduction in
the following three years thereafter starting from the first profit
making year after offsetting prior years’ tax losses, its tax rate
reached the standard rate at 25% in 2013.
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— T —=%F+= A=+ —H L% For the year ended 31 December 2013

Fr8Bip X () 11. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

BIBECEMSTE - HABRER - # According to the EIT law, its rules and regulations, enterprises that
EETEERREEBNCENEEST engage in certain qualifying agricultural business are eligible for
MBEE SRERCEEEBERNG certain tax benefits, including full EIT exemption on profits derived
MEHEHMEEMEGH - AEBE—RERK from such business. A subsidiary of the Group in the PRC engaged
ELERBEEBNTENBARAR in qualifying agricultural business is entitled to full exemption of
BEBERMEN - EIT.

FRNMGHRAXEGEER REMEE The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
W s 7% FTRBR PTG B A A R 0 S BR 40T - before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

—E—= —E—_F
2013 2012
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
br BT 15 754 B & A Profit before income tax 15,081 16,566
REBRABRAEEREAEFEIE Tax on profit at the rates applicable to the
FFE IR jurisdictions concerned 3,173 2,896
THRAIOREEE Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 526 220
= N R b A Tax effect of non-taxable income (35) —
FEMG B E QAR BRRBBEF AR Tax effect of share of post-tax profits of
F an associate (262) (231)
MEFEBRETR Under-provision in respect of prior years 54 4
BRYFEHBAFTNESEE R Tax exemption granted to PRC
subsidiaries (111) (364)
Bt Others 45 43
FrigBim = Income tax expense 3,390 2,568
ARTEE AEAEEF 12. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
RNRBHER A A& A 11,691,000 Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
E L (ZZF— =4 :13,998,0005% JT)F - of US$11,691,000 (2012: US$13,998,000), a loss of US$359,000
&5 $8359,000% T(—Z T ——F: B & (2012: a loss of US$374,000) has been dealt with in the financial
374,000 L) ER AR A B B R E AN E statements of the Company.
}% o
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013
13. BE 13. Dividends
—E-=F —E—=F
2013 2012
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
FARIZRADIKHRKRE: Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
T x8.347 1L (£91.083 1) &9 2013 interim dividend — HK8.34 cents
—E-=FHHRKRE (approximately US1.08 cents) per share 4,462 —
FAR10.208 1L (89132 11) &9 2012 final dividend — HK10.20 cents
—E—FRERKRE (approximately US1.32 cents) per share 5,461 —
BT RR8. 1B AL (£91.0551L) &Y 2012 interim dividend — HK8.11 cents
ZE—ZFFRHERE (approximately US1.05 cents) per share — 4,338
B Rx8.28 8 (Il (4)1. 07%%) gy 2011 final dividend — HK8.28 cents
—E-—FREHK (approximately US1.07 cents) per share — 4,424
9,923 8,762

RBmERARR EFERRTEHZE

T —=F+_A=+— Eﬁif;éﬂiﬁsﬁ
B B 3 8%6.9578 (L (490.90% ) - #& &
28,842,500 7T (493,719,000 ;T)(= &
——F HEZE——-F+-A=1+—H
Jtifﬁ’]ﬂiﬁﬂﬂ Eﬁﬁﬁm.zo;‘%m%@
1.32&) EESFBRRERNERERR KX
g ER ETﬁE;o@E%XEHH&%E@
HERHHAEREBAEE -

w)‘%ﬂ %

=}
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Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK6.95 cents (approximately US0.90 cents), totally amounting to
HK$28,842,500 (approximately US$3,719,000) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: final dividend of HK10.20
cents (approximately US1.32 cents) in respect of the year ended
31 December 2012) per share has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting. The proposed final dividends have not been
recognised as a liability at the reporting date.
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14. BREF 14. Earnings per Share
BRERBANBRFARRAIHEE ARG The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
4564 F &2415,000,000% B 81715 (= consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company and
T — 4 : 415,000,000 A& 1) 5+ & - 415,000,000 shares in issue during the year (2012: 415,000,000

shares).
REERFAR F—F1 BBEHER The Group had no potential dilutive shares during the year and
M e prior year.
15. AE AR WA &= 15. Interest in a Subsidiary
—F-=F —E——F
2013 2012
FER FE7
US$'000 Us$'000
FLMIRE - R Unlisted investment, at cost 25,020 25,020
JEWI B AR RIBEAEERR - 28 KA The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and
JEEREE -ZBESERE  HHROEREEE repayable on demand. The directors consider that the carrying
EHANFEMESE amount of the balance approximates to its fair value.

A IR t2013
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013

16. ¥ -HERRKE 16. Property, Plant and Equipment
RE Group
BFEREE HER RE BARRB EERIR st
Furniture
Building Motor and Construction
and plant Machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
FERT T FTE=x Fxx T T
Us$'000 US$'000  US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000  US$'000
W-ZE——%F—A—H At 1 January 2012
B Cost 15,458 6,517 1,099 1,661 2,504 27,239
ES i Accumulated depreciation (1,785) (1,660) (400) (567) — (4,412)
REHE Net carrying amount 13,673 4,857 699 1,094 2,504 22,827

HEZZ——-F+-A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2012

FONREFEE Opening net carrying amount 13,673 4,857 699 1,094 2,504 22,827
RS Exchange adjustment 158 55 7 12 63 295
NE Additions 11 540 134 352 7,038 8,075
e Depreciation (546) (603) (111) (260) — (1,520)
BEE Disposals — (5) M (@) — (10)
RERZIRER Transfer from construction in

progress 2,825 751 — 76 (3,652) —
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 16,121 5,595 728 1,270 5,953 29,667
NZE——%+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2012
KA Cost 18,476 7,798 1,198 2,081 5,953 35,506
ESiiiN Accumulated depreciation (2,355) (2,203) (470) (811) — (5,839)
REFE Net carrying amount 16,121 5,595 728 1,270 5,953 29,667

HEZZ—=F+=-A=+—HIEFE VYearended 31 December 2013

FNEEFEE Opening net carrying amount 16,121 5,595 728 1,270 5,953 29,667
[EREGE:S Exchange adjustment 554 192 20 39 88 893
RE Additions 56 1,167 37 374 4,801 6,435
e Depreciation (603) (721) (129) (330) — (1,783)
BRE Disposals — (136) (15) (49) — (200)
WEBRIRER Transfer from construction in

progress 8,211 2,418 — 177 (10,806) —
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 24,339 8,515 641 1,481 36 35,012
RZE—Z=Z5+-A=+—H At 31 December 2013
AR Cost 27,371 11,314 1,078 2,408 36 42,207
2HE Accumulated depreciation (3,032) (2,799) (437) (927) — (7,195)
REHE Net carrying amount 24,339 8,515 641 1,481 36 35,012
NZE—=F+"A=+—H  EEEEA As at 31 December 2013, certain properties with carrying amounts
10,034,000E 7T (= E— =4 : 12,778,000 of US$10,034,000 (2012: US$12,778,000) were pledged to secure
E)NEFYESEBURSIEITHE the banking facilities and bank borrowings (note 26).

KARITEE (P E26) °

A IR t2013
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17. Prepaid Land Lease Payment

RE Group
—E—-=F —E——HF
2013 2012
FEn FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
BERIN BUTHRABEE: Outside Hong Kong, held on:
— R EIFE A — medium term lease 2,499 2,495
B EE AR B & E 8 R B Less: Current portion included in
current assets (59) (58)
FFAERBEEMNIERB D Non-current portion included in
non-current assets 2,440 2,437
—ZF-=F —E——4F
2013 2012
FEn FEx
US$’000 Us$'000
FUREEE Opening net carrying amount 2,495 2,533
6 R 4 5 Amortisation for the year (64) (62)
M 5, 58 & Exchange adjustment 68 24
FAREEFE Closing net carrying amount 2,499 2,495
IREERTE Gross carrying amount 2,916 2,837
N | Accumulated amortisation (417) (342)
FREEE Net carrying amount 2,499 2,495

R-ZE—=F+"A=+—H FHEEA
— 4 :2,058,0003
J0) By E T IR L i S FUEE K LAEL
BIRTHMERRITEE(HF26) -

1,222,000E T (==

26).

As at 31 December 2013, certain prepaid land lease payment with
carrying amounts of US$1,222,000 (2012: US$2,058,000) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings (note
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013

BEEE 18. Intangible Assets
RE Group
BROHEE BRMEEME BE % A A wmEr
Exclusive
distribution Technical Development
rights  know-how costs Total
FET FET FET FET
US$'000 Us$'000 UsS$'000 Us$'000
GEET) (F 7% b) (M 5EC)
(note a) (note b) (note )
RZZE—=—F—H—H At 1 January 2012
DN Cost 159 6,512 3,656 10,327
RETHE Accumulated amortisation — (292) (128) (420)
FREFEE Net carrying amount 159 6,220 3,528 9,907
HzE-_Z2——%F Year ended 31 December 2012
+ZA=+—HIEFE
FYREFE Opening net carrying amount 159 6,220 3,528 9,907
ME 5 3 5 Exchange adjustment 1 54 53 108
NE Additions — — 1,731 1,731
5 Amortisation — (582) — (582)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 160 5,692 5,312 11,164
RZZF—=—F+=-A=+—H At31 December 2012
B AR Cost 160 6,576 5,441 12,177
ZETHE Accumulated amortisation — (884) (129) (1,013)
REFE Net carrying amount 160 5,692 5,312 11,164
BHE-_T—=% Year ended 31 December 2013
TZA=+—BHILEE
FHEREFE Opening net carrying amount 160 5,692 5,312 11,164
ME 5 58 2 Exchange adjustment 10 162 165 337
NE Additions 325 766 1,634 2,725
# 8 Amortisation — (597) — (597)
it 88 Write off — — (328) (328)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 495 6,023 6,783 13,301
RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H At31 December 2013
A& A Cost 495 7,536 6,916 14,947
RETHGH Accumulated amortisation — (1,513) (133) (1,646)
BREEE Net carrying amount 495 6,023 6,783 13,301
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18. B & &E (&)
KEE(E)
B 2

F i

RZT——F  AEEHEELEFEND
B %5 5 [F /A &) & Ethypharm SA (4578
[EWMEDITIBRBZ -

REHS  AEEERRRS BE
wEEREEY ((5a]) R EE
RMIGKHEE  BERELASER
BI04 -

BEABRDHEEHZ AEEA
RERAEGEQREEEER(EXRR
REREEEERRILENERF
MECEOEZZEMENDEBAER
B 4247,000F T (HEROARYE
1,500,0007T) ¢ K& 78 gk A B X B fn 5%
MEEEERAFEANEREMEBER
J8 R R B 35 2 1+41,072,000% 7T (K9 A
R #6,500,0007T) ° 2 85 #E X E R #
ZHRE A R A A E ([ 7E29) ©
HEMEZSRAMBHREAE - &
A2 7 MR -

(i) RZZE—=F+=f FAEHFH—-F
HEFIBRIBE - UG B
MIEFEAHI0OFHN D SHE - 1bH 8
R EREERIOFEFH(BAEC
T—NFE—A—BHRND HER)
B -

18. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Exclusive distribution rights

@i

(ii)

In 2011, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement with
Shanghai Ethypharm Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd and Ethypharm SA
(collectively referred to as “Ethypharm”).

Under the agreement, the Group has been granted the exclusive
rights for the marketing and distribution of ketoprofen/omeprazole
slow-release capsules (the “Drug”) in the PRC for a period of 10
years from the launch date of the Drug.

Pursuant to the agreement of this exclusive distribution rights,
the Group is committed to pay US$247,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,500,000) to Ethypharm on the date of
the grant of the Import Drug License (“IDL") from the State
Food and Drug Administration (“SFDA"); and committed to pay
US$1,072,000 (approximately RMB6,500,000) for the clinical
studies that required from SFDA to apply the IDL application.
The consideration of the distribution rights had been disclosed as
commitment at the end of the reporting date (note 29). Up to
the date of approval for these consolidated financial statements,
the registration process is still in progress.

In December 2013, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement
with a supplier to secure the distribution rights of 10 years for
one pharmaceutical product in the PRC. This exclusive right will
amortise on a straight-line basis over 10 years, being the period
of the distribution right, starting from 1 January 2014.
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18.

AN ﬂ:/ ﬁ F (nlﬁ )

REE (&)
B 5 (48)
(b) RMEENBEEZENARREES T5

Gn 1T Y BB B B AT R BE 7 e

BE-Z——FtA—AR BHEOESEEH
MEMEENBRERELER T T8
iy o

RZT—=F WEBRARAERIEZNELR
AR(ERIEDEOHNBEMB AR X
ETREEMIRNEERAR(EEDET
VEARNEERE  BRERE BRI
#EZE RS KE2,441,000% T (HARKE
14,800,0007T) M) B 18 42 B >K 22 A1 51) B2 FF 2%
BE - KRASIEHZEEERESEA KL -
EBMEIR BT - M EE - B - FOE
MPRBEETRESRE(CKRRAHEREE
B REBEZEEEBARFHER Y
EZEPRSINTFEE BE-ZT—=F1+=
A=+—HIFE  E=F#EEE11760,000
ETT (W ARMA4,670,0007T) B TFRED R
$d B OB A R B B R RE (M35 29) -

FRBERATBRERERMETRNDELD
A ER(MBERED -

EERBRUSAHEREBERERFY R
AERNBRENABERRHRTRHRS
MEMBEL EATRLRG - TR ERE
AR —BREEUEEKASE - fZERITA
BERET

HABERLRAE EEREEBEELZ
WA MEERS - AEREBFHOAN
HERTEETHEE YRSEMRFE
FRETFEREANN MEETFRBETA
SR AFE A A E R AR E - AR
T ETTRE R A
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Intangible Assets (Continued)

Group (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Technical know-how mainly represents techniques and formulae acquired
for the development and production of certain pharmaceutical products.

With effect from 1 July 2011, technical know-how in relation to the oral
disintegrating tablets had been amortised on a straight-line basis over 11
years.

In 2013, Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo
Liwah"), a subsidiary, into a pharmaceutical
transfer agreement with Tianjin Longbai Biological Engineering and
Technology Company Limited (“Longbai”), an indirect subsidiary of
CIH. Pursuant to the agreement, Ningbo Liwah agreed to acquire from

entered technology

Longbai the misoprostol development project for a cash consideration
of US$2,441,000 (approximately RMB14,800,000).
development project comprised the know-how and related materials
and technology, intellectual properties, patent, permit(s) and license(s),
and certain supporting equipment (“Misoprostol Development project”).
The consideration will be paid by Ningbo Liwah to Longbai in cash in

The misoprostol

several milestone payments. Up to the year ended 31 December 2013,
Ningbo Liwah had paid US$760,000 (approximately RMB4,670,000). The
remaining consideration had been disclosed as commitment at the end
of the reporting date (note 29).

Development costs mainly represent intellectual property rights (“IPRs"”)
generated internally for the pharmaceutical technology.

The directors consider these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as there
is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which the IPR in
pharmaceutical industry is expected to provide cash flows. These IPRs
can be renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and the products
are continuing in the market.

If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the asset should be
written down or written off immediately to expense. IPRs with indefinite
useful lives is not amortised and are tested for impairment annually at
each financial year end or more frequently if there are indications that
IPRs with indefinite useful lives might be impaired.
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GEESS 19. Goodwill
rEE Group
—E—-=F —E——F
2013 2012
FER FEx
US$°000 US$'000
AR A Carrying amount 6,824 6,824
REBR _ZZRFWEZ R TELMH The Group acquired Ningbo Liwah and Lansen Medicine

ABECRYDBRAR(RIBAE]D - %
FRXHNRBEEHEAR ©

AEENSEMBREFEFRABHBET
FRBEND  HADRBTREZAGE
e SEAEEETRERM -

BRENANE  HERIEE—ER
TELBMN BRIZXBAEENME
BEEMENMBERAR  HEDBREKZ
DB [ERL B -

PR EeELEUAIROSENEER
HIrZHERKMAmT

ZHREeELBUMNAIKE S EAERE
BEAEEETE ZAEEAERERETE
i@J"?ﬁt/E*Xﬁiﬁﬁﬁ’Jﬁﬁkiﬁ SR
METERAARN%HWIFTRE (ZT——F
12%) ° Eiﬁﬂiﬁﬂaﬁfﬁéﬁi%%iﬁ
KO%TEA - LB RERTIIRIERE BT
RERAME EREBEAEEZNHEME
ZRETENRIR ji//lb)\///\bﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁu*
ETERBEEHEHEREMNE - GRAMGE
DERZEMBERRUAREEEHT
GEEMNIER - BEEME FALSE
BERAELEENGEEH B TIEEHA
FFEEREAEWEAE -

BE-F-=#+-A=t+—ALEE:
AREEEERT EAREHENSR
SEEEMLRAME -

(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”) in 2005. These
transactions have been accounted for by the acquisition method of
accounting.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment at each financial
year end, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to one CGU, including subsidiaries with principal activities
of manufacturing and trading of specialty pharmaceuticals which
is identical to the “Specialty pharmaceuticals” under operating
segment.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGU and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 11% (2012: 12%).
The growth rate of used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the
five-year period is 0% which is based on pharmaceutical industry
growth forecast. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the unit’s past performance and management'’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairments of any of its CGU
containing goodwill.
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. REBtE AT RS 20. Interest in an Associate
rEE Group
—E—-=F —_E—_F
2013 2012
FER FEx
US$°000 Us$'000
BLHEEFE Share of net assets 14,902 13,347
kS Goodwill 19,207 18,684
34,109 32,031
EAAEENREAROEE A TS Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting period
nT is as follows:
= i BR S7 ith BE % rEEFMSREEEERR
AR EHRB FTEEEME RERNLH TEEW
Place of
incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal interest and voting power
Name of entity place of business held by the Group Principal activity
—E-=F Z—ZE——%F
2013 2012
WIIRALHERNBERAR FH 21.5% 21.5% HEERMEMDER
(AR
Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical The PRC Production of bulk
Company Limited (“Starry”) pharmaceuticals and
intermediates
LB E AR AR ARGV The above associate was accounted for using the equity method in
WERAR - the consolidated financial statements.
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20.

— T —=%F+= A=+ —H L% For the year ended 31 December 2013
REE QAT WL (E) 20. Interest in an Associate (Continued)
AEE(E) Group (Continued)
FEASEEBERTNMBEERBES Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
Fan T associate is set out below:
—E—= —E—_F
2013 2012
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December
mEEE Current assets 61,488 54,492
IEREEE Non-current assets 104,885 77,290
mEBE Current liabilities (80,088) (63,506)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (22,613) (12,128)
BE+-HA=+—BLEE Year ended 31 December
WA Revenue 111,627 97,593
F N F Profit for the year 8,126 7,579
FRHE M2 E Y = Other comprehensive income for the year — —
FATEKRBERE Total comprehensive income for the year 8,126 7,579
FANERKE RRWEN R E Dividends received from the associate
during the year 426 4,174
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REE QAT WL (E) 20. Interest in an Associate (Continued)

AEE(E) Group (Continued)

LA L*E%L‘E’J WA RSP mEFT Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
HRABEAFNESERENEER: the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

—E—= —E——%F
2013 2012
FErR FET
US$'000 Us$'000
RAIAVHEAEANEEER Equity attributable to
owners of Starry 62,728 55,174
REBENRB AL EBEEZ LB Proportion of the Group's
ownership interest in Starry 21.5% 21.5%
13,487 11,862
kS Goodwill 19,207 18,684
RUEER A FEFENZE () Effect of fair value adjustments
at acquisition (note) 1,441 1,401
H b A 2 Other adjustments (26) 84
AREBRAAYEZEFAEE Carrying amount of
the Group's interest in Starry 34,109 32,031
Met: RZE——ZF+—A=++tH AEEEB Note: On 27 November 2012, the Group further acquired 1.5% equity interest
MCHWE2EMB AR E—FWERA in Starry through the acquisition of a wholly-owned subsidiary from
R HI1.5% MR A & - (B /&2,202,000% CIH, at a consideration of US$2,202,000, and the Company increased its
TC o AR R R EE AR R ERBE20% equity interest in an associate from 20% to 21.5% accordingly.

EME21.5% °
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21. #E 21. Inventories
rEE Group
—E—-=F —E——HF
2013 2012
FEx FEx
US$'000 Us$'000
R R Raw materials 4,510 3,650
EE & Work-in-progress 6,474 2,907
BB o Finished goods 6,201 5,266
17,185 11,823

REZE-E——F+-A=+—HBILFE
N ARAFEELNBEFEREK SR
/) BR T (B 1 21,0003 JT &9 B & o otk B
[B] J5 FR 7N B8 B EE R AE T 35 £ MY R A) &
RFEGFTER -

During the year ended 31 December 2012, provisions of
US$21,000 made in prior years against the carrying value of
finished goods have been reversed. This reversal arose due to an
increase in the estimated net realisable value of pharmaceutical
products in the market.

22. ESRHMEKRE 22. Trade and other Receivables
rE Group

—E—= —E——%F
2013 2012
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
=78 1 & QL] Trade receivables 33,367 33,862

BB SHIE 1451 HREEE Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (918) (1,903)
32,449 31,959
JE W & Bills receivables 15,282 14,556
B 5 WG K e U R R Trade and bills receivables 47,731 46,515
TE T FRIE I B A e W R IE Prepayments and other receivables 9,734 8,637
57,465 55,152

ERR BHRHEMERFENRE
B *H%

- fel
B A
+H
m I

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and

other receivables approximate their fair values.
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HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013

22. ESRHEHMEWRFIEE)
KEHE(E)
AEFEHBRKEREZFRE FH0E
1208 (ZZE——4:90BEN0H)NEE
H o

REBEZEZAH BEHREAHML  AK
B r B 5 e ORI R (FORR R
BEER)KREITMT

22. Trade and other Receivables (Continued)

Group (Continued)
The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period of 90
to 120 days to its customers (2012: 90 to 120 days).

Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade and bills
receivables (net of impairment losses) of the Group as of the end of
the reporting date is as follows:

—E—=F —E—_F

2013 2012

FEx Fx

US$'000 Us$'000

90H AT 90 days or below 42,670 41,841
912180H 91-180 days 3,965 4,670
181&F365H 181-365 days 1,096 4
47,731 46,515

ANEBE M E S FEIWGRIE & B ZE I 4 6
1 4% 48 BR [ 184,455,000 T (Z & — =
F :3,302,000% 70) W ERIA - 25 E
WHEAREAHEAHRERNEE R
BEEEIREE ZERERZEZA
I ERREENBLIEEER - B
BALEH ARFEERE BARNEHR
HEVWESEKXES  BEHERABEA
2HWE - AMBARZELEHRIEL R
BEE AEBEVERZEEHRFEL
Al @ -

AREEE 8 HHE W R RE #) B 5 8 UK

Included in the Group's trade and bills receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amounts of US$4,455,000 (2012:
US$3,302,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. These
relate to a number of independent customers of whom there
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The Group's ageing analysis of past due but not impaired trade

HERE DT receivables is as follows:
—2-=F —FF
2013 2012
FER Fx
US$'000 Us$'000
#HR1E90H Past due over 1-90 days 3,359 3,298
# #9912 275H Past due over 91-275 days 1,096 4
4,455 3,302
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22,

— T —=%F+= A=+ —H L% For the year ended 31 December 2013

B 5Kk H bW AR

22. Trade and other Receivables (Continued)

KEE(E)
AEEEFGRWRIBNBREREZES N
T

Group (Continued)
Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

—E—= —E—_F

2013 2012

FER FET

Us$'000 Us$'000

®—HA—H At 1 January 1,903 1,993

ME 5, o B Exchange adjustment 38 18
B 5 MR IBR R E (B E), B # (Reversal of )/Provision for

impairment of trade receivables (568) 126

RAE S AT Y 1= o H 8 H © B8 Amounts written off as uncollectible (455) (234)

W+ZA=+—H At 31 December 918 1,903

b 5 R WK TR R R (B 1 e Tt 1B B
EAEH) B B UGRIA R o (B RIRE
YRR TZEBMRRENTFSER -
EHEA D BURARBAIWKE - K
SETELZSERFTEEMNERR -

MN-B—=F+-"A=+—08 K@k
RIRERE S U GIE A27,994,000% 7T
(- ZT——4%:28657,000E7T) ZEZ
55 B U 3R TE B2 R % 3 HA X 4 R GRS B Y
EFPEH -

REBEZE-_ZE—=F+=-A=+—8%k=
T——F+-A=Z+—HLEFER K&
ErnemE@EitRE T2 BREMND
DREWMERE - WEKRZERZ  ~NEE
BEEBERSHMEBIFHBRAZRIE - &
B EFN S m I U B FT15 3 T85.6%
(ZE2—ZF:79%)5tE EEZRWER
S BEEE - A AEEEGRIRE
BEEBBLREENKORAR -

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is made for
individually impaired trade receivables. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected to
be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of US$27,994,000
(2012: US$28,657,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These
related to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012, the Group discounted part of its bills receivables with full
recourse to financial institutions. In the event of default by the bills
receivables, the Group is obliged to pay the financial institutions
the amount in default. Interest is charged at 5.6% (2012: 7.9%)
per annum on the proceeds received from the financial instructions
until the date the bills receivables pay. The Group is therefore
exposed to the risks of credit losses and late payment in respect of
the discounted bills.

Annual Report 2013
—ET-=FFH

121



BB EERER AT

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

TSR R M 5T
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZT—=%F1+= A=+ —HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2013

22. ES R HAMEKREE) 22. Trade and other Receivables (Continued)

122

KEE(E)

AN AEEREEEREERNB A
DR KRBT - AR R ZW A B
SR ERFER KRR EENSR
F e -N_ZT—=ZF+_A=+—8" EK
Z$#£130,000E T (ZF— =4 : 7,765,000
EMEBRAANEETBRRERR &
EEEAZFEETSREE - BFRER S
WS RIBEIEREEERRME (MizE26)
AABERN  BEEEREBEREESA
SEENSRKENMERE RZT
—=F+-A=+—H8 BEERREA
& A130,000%F 7t (=T ——4F : 7,765,000
ET) e

HREREBEAZEETSRMEE
BASEERETRURENGEE °

W_ZE—=F+-"A=+—H KEES
4,642,000 L (ZE—Z—F  E)NET
EREHEEEBUARBERETEE (M
26) - HEA B ERERMEE A7,100,000% 7T
ZE—ZFE)o

W_ZE—=F+-"A=+—H KEES
659,0003€ JT (— & — — 4F : 3,291,0003%
TT) By 3 T H Ath B U ROE B R LA RS 8RB
TEEME26) - BRREBEHNR_ZT—
WENAZTUAEE - WiE2% M F 7
KB - BB EMEREE &1,289,000
E T (ZF— 14 :7,740,000% 7T) °

R-ZE—=F+-A=+—H #RHE
HE M ERFBEIE 28O - e st
AETRARBERBUGBEERZIRER
AR E 649,000k T (B ——4F ¢
635,000%€ 7T) - N E W EFL X Z 4 %
RAEEWETRR -
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Group (Continued)

The discounting transactions do not meet the requirements in
IAS 39 for de-recognition of financial assets as the Group retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
discounted bills receivables. At 31 December 2013, bills receivables
of US$130,000 (2012: US$7,765,000) continue to be recognised
in the Group's financial statements even though they have been
legally transferred to the financial institutions. The proceeds of
the discounting transactions are included in borrowings as asset-
backed financing (note 26) until the bills receivables are collected
or the Group settles any losses suffered by the financial institutions.
At 31 December 2013, the asset-backed financing liability
amounted to US$130,000 (2012: US$7,765,000).

Because the bills receivables have been transferred to the financial
institutions legally, the Group did not have the authority to
determine the disposition of the bills receivables.

As at 31 December 2013, certain bills receivables with carrying
amounts of US$4,642,000 (2012: nil) were pledged to secure
bank borrowings (note 26). The carrying amount of the associated
liability is US$7,100,000 (2012: nil).

As at 31 December 2013, certain other receivables with carrying
amounts of US$659,000 (2012: US$3,291,000) were pledged to
secure bank borrowings (note 26). The receivables will mature
on 24 June 2014 and carry interest at 2% per annum. The
carrying amount of the associated liability is US$1,289,000 (2012:
US$7,740,000).

As at 31 December 2013, a provision for impairment of other
receivables of US$649,000 (2012: US$635,000) was recognised
for certain long outstanding receivables as these receivables are
not expected to be fully recovered. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
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22. ESRHEHMEWRFIEE) 22. Trade and other Receivables (Continued)
AEE(E) Group (Continued)
7N 55 2] ELh JE SRR TE B R B B R Eh an Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of other
T~ receivables is as follows:
—_E—-= —E——%F
2013 2012
FER FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
®—A—8 At 1 January 635 994
ME 5, o8 E Exchange adjustment 18 10
H h fE U SR IE R (B B Reversal of impairment of
other receivables @) M
5 7E 7 B] Ui =] i 8 A & B8 Amounts written off as uncollectible — (368)
WR+=-ZA=+—8H At 31 December 649 635
KRB (B BN - b all & EE 0 ok 8 2 sk Rk Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is either
B il N BIER € Rt & E i past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
IR RS E R RIER A - balances related to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.
23. CEBRTER HELRELSE 23. Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

&Y

Equivalents
AEE LN
Group Company
—E—=Ff —ZT——-—F ZB-—-=F —_ZE——-F
2013 2012 2013 2012

FER TXET FER TET
Uss$'000 US$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000

He MIRTTA & Cash and bank balances 25,487 19,706 3 3
B BIEERITER Less: pledged bank deposits (14,458) (8,325) — —
HeMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 11,029 11,381 3 3
ReEMBETERBERTIEFHERS N Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and in hand, and
MREEBE=(EAS AT EBRTT short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
T RITHRESBIBET HARITF N =X or less. Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
WHEEBMEE - RHTHEFHRFAR bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are placed with

TR T S REREA B -

banks and earn interest at market interest rates.
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23. CEFHETER BHERRESE
EY(E)
R_E—=F+-_A=+—BRk=ZF—Z
FH- A=+ —HBEHRTERE
AEBARESETHRIMENRBITEE
(Mg 3E26) ML PR RITFR o

R-ZZE—ZF+-_A=+—H A&H
K IR & K IR 1T 4 % 8 1523,447,000% T
— T — 4 :18,098,000% JT) K IR 1T 45
% REBUAREBIAREDFER
FERABENET ARBIIEEARA

23. Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

Equivalents (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure certain banking facilities and bank borrowings
(note 26) as of 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2013, included in cash and bank balances of
the Group was US$23,447,000 (2012: US$18,098,000) of bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed with banks in
the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.

Bmee -
24. R 24. Share Capital
BREE0.01%
THEBEREE -}
Number of
ordinary
shares of
US$0.01 each Amount
FET
Us$'000
VEE Authorised :
RZE—=—F—H—8 " At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012
—E——H#+-_A=+—HK and 31 December 2013
—F2—=%+=-—A=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
BETRARE: Issued and fully paid :
RZE—=—F—H—8" At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012
—E——HF+ZA=+—HEFK and 31 December 2013
—E-=F+-A=+—H 415,000,000 4,150

25. f#1E
DR EIERBE R R DB Er £ -

EERBERERTEEBEIRE K
o B P B8 2 R &9 A 0 BE = T AT 0K ek
ek -

SV {5 18 15 $R B HMNE P BB 8 B B A R R
M BE =R -
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25. Reserves
The share premium represents the excess over the nominal value
for shares allotted.

The statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the PRC
subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as required
by the relevant PRC statue.

The foreign exchange reserve represents exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries.
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25. Reserves (Continued)

RAFE Company
BB EE 2 EE st
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
FETT FETT FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 UsS$'000

N-ZE——F—HF—H At 1 January 2012 58,330 (1,222) 57,108
A% 8 (Bt 5E13) Dividends (note 13) (8,762) — (8,762)
HEEFGANETRS Transactions with owners (8,762) — (8,762)
FAEE Loss for the year — (374) (374)
FRNEMEEK S Other comprehensive income

for the year — — —
FARHEK =B Total comprehensive income for

the year — (374) (374)
R-ZZF——-F+=-H=+—H At31December2012 49,568 (1,596) 47,972
g B (B 3E13) Dividends (note 13) (9,923) — (9,923)
BEFEANETRS Transactions with owners (9,923) — (9,923)
FANEE Loss for the year — (359) (359)
FAHMEEW = Other comprehensive income

for the year — — —
FAZEK =B Total comprehensive income for

the year — (359) (359)
R=ZF—=F5+=H=+—H At31December 2013 39,645 (1,955) 37,690
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26. B & 26. Borrowings
RE Group
—E—-=F —E——HF
2013 2012
FER FEx
US$’000 Us$'000
ELRITEE Fixed-rate bank borrowings 20,284 10,587
FERITEE Variable-rate bank borrowings 38,738 23,903
EEERME Asset-backed financing 130 7,765
59,152 42,255
BEM Secured 34,374 34,395
R 4 1 Unsecured 24,778 7,860
59,152 42,255
—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
FErx FEx
US$'000 Us$'000
RITEE Bank borrowings 59,022 34,490
R—FREHNEEERRE Asset-backed financing due
within one year 130 7,765
—FRNEE Repayable within one year 59,152 42,255
R-EBE——F+-A=+—H R"RIHEE As at 31 December 2012, the current liabilities included bank
BRETEEEAR—FRNEENRITEE borrowings of US$1,290,000 that were not scheduled to repay
1,290,000 7T ' MAREBEE R HEH within one year. They were classified as current liabilities as the
EIRERKEBEGED  WERTEESEEA related loan agreements contain a repayment on demand clause.
MBBEE ER—FEINAEELR None of the portion of these bank borrowings, due for repayment
EREREEKEZNBETEE B0 after one year which contained a repayment on demand clause and
ABRYEE  BEETAILHBEHR—F that was classified as current liability, was expected to be settled
WIETE ° within one year.
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26.

BE (&)

AEME(EK)

R-TE—=F+"A=+—H  HTR?T
ARG EARSEE T BRI E A
M REERBITROAGEE  ARTH
REBEBNEELHPEER - WA
SHERRG CRIWBEAKEX

&g -

AEBTHEREEZGENETER -
ES—HRBTHERNEEBEER -
VTRERBAEBEEFTAXZSHETE
RITTRAIBEITEEMBEREEER -
ERAEEEERDECRBNE—F
HBENWE0 - RE—=F+_7
—t+—B - YEERCIREAENIEEA
RHE(ZE—F |-

26.

— T —=%F+= A=+ —H L% For the year ended 31 December 2013

Borrowings (Continued)

Group (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, certain banking facilities are subject
to the fulfillment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to
breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants,
is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the term loans
and does not consider it probable that the bank will exercise
its discretion to demand repayment for so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 30. As at
31 December 2013, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2012: none).

—E—= —E—_F
2013 2012
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
(Ve Represented by:
ARBEE Borrowings in RMB 24,207 18,833
ELEE Borrowings in US$ 33,656 8,800
BL(AETDEER Borrowings in Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$") 1,289 14,622
59,152 42,255
—E—-=fF —E——F
2013 2012
FExn FEx
US$'000 Us$'000
ERENX Effective interest rate per annum:
WITEE Bank borrowings 3.78% 3.90%
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26. fEE (&)

AEME(EK)

AEBEEME TRITER - BRERE
HiBYWHIE ME - BELREERTE
NEmBEEFIE  WESAEERTH
BERRITIEE - REFCEREERRE
BEOEREELDT:

— T —=%F+= A=+ —H L% For the year ended 31 December 2013

26. Borrowings (Continued)
Group (Continued)
The Group had pledged certain bank deposits, bills receivables,
other receivables, property, plant and equipment and prepaid land
lease payment to secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings
of the Group. The carrying values of these assets pledged at the
reporting date are as follows:

—E-=F —E——F

2013 2012

FER FE7

US$’000 Us$'000

L E N Property, plant and equipment 10,034 12,778
FEN T ERE Prepaid land lease payment 1,222 2,058
BEIEMIEITFER Pledged bank deposits 14,458 8,325
B E KRB Pledged bills receivables 4,642 —
Bty JE UK IE Pledged other receivables 659 3,291
31,015 26,452

EIIFIRITE E24,778,000 T (Z & —
—4F :7,860,0003 7T ) LA £ [ i B A R
TEER -

BERERBEETNABKRE RS
VMR UL ERRENRERZAESH
MERE -HHEEREEFABIRHE
b UK IA (KT 5522) - RERER —F
NEBEH WAARBEEE -
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The unsecured bank borrowings of US$24,778,000 (2012:
US$7,860,000) were guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Group.

The asset-backed financing represents the amount of financing
obtained in factoring transactions which do not meet the de-
recognition requirements in IAS 39. The corresponding financial
assets are included in trade and other receivables (note 22).These
borrowings matured within one year and were repayable in RMB.
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27. EERIBEE 27. Deferred Tax Liabilities
RE Group
ROREBF M
TEENE EERBERE Hity Fy
PRC
withholding
tax on Deferred
undistributed development
earnings costs Others Total
FET TET FEx FET
US$'000 us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
R-ZZE——F—A—HAK-ZF—= At1January 2012 and
F+ZA=1+—H 31 December 2012 181 — — 181
ME A Exchange adjustment — 3 — 3
KB =R Charge to profit or loss — 166 28 194
R-ZZE-—=F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 181 169 28 378

BEFECEMSRE BZFTTNF
—A—B# - BPBEHE R AT RS T
mEIRkAEBHARTENT - 265715
$RE| AR A BB A 1A 44,648,000
E (= ZF— 4% :33,883,000% 7t) 5t
St ) FT R A B BT B 22 RE O I O RE R T
B REAENRASEEJEHEREZEN
BEREE AzSYRE=8daltegn
AIE R kL o

EN|
R-BE—=F+-_A=+—BKEkZT—Z
FH+ZA=+—B ARALEEFE
REREH -

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to US$44,648,000 (2012: US$33,883,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Company
As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Company did
not have any material temporary differences.
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28. ESZRHMENNRE 28. Trade and Other Payables
RE Group
—E—-=F —E——HF
2013 2012
FTER FET
US$’000 Us$'000
B 5 ERFIE Trade payables 10,321 10,876
Eo b e BRI K HE BT AR IE Other payables and accruals 10,315 9,179
20,636 20,055
BEZEAH BEREEHIL K& Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade payables of
HEZENRIBERESTAOT the Group as of the end of the reporting date is as follows:
—F—-=F —E——4F
2013 2012
FEn FET
US$'000 Us$'000
QBT 90 days or below 7,491 7,610
91£180H 91-180 days 500 784
1812 365H 181-365 days 1,074 1,184
H#iE365H Over 365 days 1,256 1,298
10,321 10,876
EERA BEHREMENFKEBENERR The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
BEEEQATFERSE ° other payables approximate to their fair values.
RAFE Company
—EB—-=fF —E——F
2013 2012
FER FET
US$'000 Us$'000
FEET R Accruals 200 178

A IR 12013
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29. BIREAIE 29. Financial Commitments
REHENEE Operating lease commitment
NE Group
—E—-=F —E——F
2013 2012
FER Fx
US$'000 Us$'000
RIE A SE & TH A M R R &% {K Future minimum rental payable under
JEREESNT: non-cancellable operating lease are
as follows:
1R Within one year 74 199
F2E5F In the second to fifth year 63 121
137 320

AEENREHOERETYE - BY
FHRNF—ERF  IRERBHEA
SENEREXIE T HENENERE
BEY - ZEHOBTEEEMKAME

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The
leases terms are between one and five years, with options to renew
the lease terms at the expiry dates or at days as mutually agreed
between the Group and the respective landlords. None of these
leases includes any contingent rentals.

b NNE| Company

—EB—-=fF —E——F
2013 2012
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000

RIE A s L & TH A B R R &2 {K Future minimum rental payable under

EMELSWMT non-cancellable operating lease are as
follows:

1A Within one year 5 2
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29.

30.

— T —=%F+= A=+ —H L% For the year ended 31 December 2013

B RS AR HE (1) 29. Financial Commitments (Continued)
EREE Capital commitment
NE Group
—E—=fF T
2013 2012
FEx FEx
Us$'000 UsS$'000
EHE RETA R E AR IE Capital commitments authorised and
contracted for:
EmEE Intangible assets 3,887 2,520
BERKE Construction and equipment 127 86
4,014 2,606

R-ZB—=f+-A=+—-AR=Z—=
F+-A=+—8  ADEHEERE

E o

=

B b B2
AEEHUREEELERKRERINS
HMHER  ARENRBREENELR
M LHRBEZTAEF BHREF
BRASENEHEFHRESRE -

FERR
AEENEERREZRAE S BUK
H e FAMBARAREINEESHRK
R RRERE  LIEASEEEER
EREKREYEMKERENIGE
4o

RREEERR AEBEEEDITY
EERR HREHRAEEEEERE
EEEHNEMMEITIRIE - URERK
RAETHROAHER -

RN B IR E B4R 1 5 8038,244,000% T
MNP ERMEENEERR -
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30.

The Company had no capital commitments as at 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012.

Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The Group's
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively securing the
Group's short to medium term cash flows.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,
estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience
and their assessment of the current economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk arising from the
provision of financial guarantees amounted to US$ 38,244,000.
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30.

2 B = (4])

EERER(E)
MW-ZB—=F+-"F=+—0 BFEWK
RIEMEERE2% (CE——F : 21%) K
BALEEZRARF -

nBEEERBRER  ERHF IR
FBZIRTT ©

RBELSRR
ARBEFCEYBENRDE SRR
EEERNEEASENE F KH
ExhiBEesBEREKR-

AEEBBERTEMFE  RITRBN
REEERE HEZEAAINRERR
CRENMEHEREENABNIHIE
ANEERRBESRER - I NEE
THEZERDES B RN EGER
MESTIER  BREEF RN
W UAREHERERANRHESR

TRAMAEEIFTESHABNHRT
BHHHFL  TRIOBREBEAKE K
EREFRZEAMNERABERTEAR
ERERE -ABMS THE|ETES
AIRE IR BT EAEN - MR BREE K
FORTEFAFARERHEE - &
WIMTEERBENIMASTIRE W

EERAMGEE -

TRESNERAEHERE - £FE
MRRFHNERFENBERT - KRR
TEBENBREMRNAEGFE

o

—Z—=%+= A=+ —H L FZ For the year ended 31 December 2013

30. Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
As of 31 December 2013, 21% (2012: 21%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks.

Liquidity risk
The directors of the Company have built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
Moreover, the Group regularly monitors its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirement in the short and long term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.
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30. [ Bz E 2 (&)

30.

Risk Management (Continued)

RBESRR(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
wE Group
—E-=F
2013
15K BHRRITR
FRER 1225 285 REREAE
Total
Within Between Between contractual
oneyearor oneand twoand undiscounted
on demand two years five years cash flows
FER TER FER FER
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000 US$'000
BE Borrowings 60,332 — — 60,332
B 5N FIR Trade payables 10,321 — — 10,321
EfbER A K EFT5XE  Other payables and accruals 10,315 — — 10,315
80,968 — — 80,968
2012

1R BHRIARITR
iR B3R [EVE:S 285 R RnBEE
Total
Within Between Between contractual
one year or one and two and  undiscounted
ondemand twoyears five years cash flows
FET FETT FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
BE Borrowings 43,114 — — 43,114
B 5 RNRIE Trade payables 10,876 — — 10,876
HAibFER A N 58 Other payables and accruals 9,179 — — 9,179
63,169 — — 63,169

MR EREEEANBITEEFTA L
B B T ek iR B ok B R &
cHZFE——E+=—fA=+—0H 7%
IRITIEE RITIA AL % 51,290,000
Lo REBEAEEGFEMNE - EEM

FEIRITTAAES

TTEEBENERAE

BER -EEHEZERTEELSRNE
E_T——HF+_A=1+—BILFEEBR
FRRBERMGZEMSHRTERBHE

B @R A2 RMNERER

1,347,000 7T ©
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Bank borrowings with a repayment on

demand clause are

included in the “within one year or on demand” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2012, the aggregate

undiscounted principal amounts of the
amounted to US$1,290,000. Taking into

se bank borrowings
account the Group's

financial position, the directors did not believe that it was probable
that the banks would exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believed that such bank
borrowings would be repaid within two years after the year ended

31 December 2012 in accordance with the

scheduled repayment

dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to US$1,347,000.
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[ Bex B P (48) 30. Risk Management (Continued)
RBESRR(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
RAHE Company
—E—=F
2013
15K Bt
Within
one year Total
FERx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
] Accruals 200 200
—E——_F
2012
1A #Et
Within
one year Total
FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEETEUIA Accruals 178 178

457 5 BY 45 B R 18 45 HA o 7 8 2 0 )
B B EXHIETELREETA
TEFRANREREEE -

AARIRENBRAREERERENE
4 B1 75 £ 1R 238,244,000k L (— T —
—4F :16,540,000% JT) ° WA E FFT T
& RITPIKRARERZERERAHAAR
RNEIRRIBXR LN RNAEK B AQA
TRAGELERERTEE - At K
REIWERZERRBATNE FIELD#
f o

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

The contractual financial guarantees provided by the Company
in respect of the borrowing facilities of its subsidiaries are
US$38,244,000 (2012: US$16,540,000). As assessed by the
directors, it is not probable that the bank would claim the
Company for losses in respect of the guarantee contracts. In
addition, it is not probable that the subsidiaries of the Company
would default repayment of bank borrowings. Accordingly, no
provision for the Company’s obligation under guarantees has been
made.
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30. BB EE(E) 30. Risk Management (Continued)

136

5 L B
REBRZEWE AT INER R -
REERASENEARFENKRED
CRMEERABOUZSEHNBLRRANSG
M EREE-

SR B B A I SN H R R o R
EEEERIERR  YHRBEFTER
EERYHERIIER -

A R =
AEEEHOMSHNEXEHRAK TR
WEBNEABNAREERETHR -
REBHRITIEE M ERMERGERE RN
B FE261% B o A5 [ B A1 8 (L AR X
HOMBUR -

THEREITIRERSHRIEITE
TEAMMEEARERE - SLFBMNXEAE
5 ABOMNBRERREHROE KR
BERESENBREFEORERMNR
HoERITEEEABRNFFREMEME
B (0 ASOME 2B LA T IRIRE - 1t
MRER BN RS A R BT

fi 5 T e/ E FHSOEE 8 - T A £
BB TR BIAEME:

. BE_Z—=F+-A=+—H01tF
ERHEFER-_TE—=ZF+=_A=
+—B®RBEF DRI, R
189,000E JL(Z & — —4F : #& in /
120,000 L) - WY EEBRR
REBFZERTEEMHNFER
B PT N &

. REBR-_E—=F+"A=1+—
H &9 25 35 0 R 40189,000% T
—T——4F 18,/ £120,000
E) e
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Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of the financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in the respective
functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The interest rate and terms of repayment of bank
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 26. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the end
of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower/higher and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's:

o Profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and retained
profits as at 31 December 2013 would increase/decrease by
US$189,000 (2012: increase/decrease by US$120,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate bank borrowings; and

o The Group’s equity as at 31 December 2013 would increase/
decrease by US$189,000 (2012: increase/decrease by
US$120,000).
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30. [k EE(E)
M =RE kg ()
RAFE - R EEH F =& GURE N
TEHRNFRBRITEEIEZMAE -

RERNEINERNEEREEHNE
MEIR R T2 5| M BRE(E & T 51 & R
BEEMTCRARESRRAMA -

30. Risk Management (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during
the current year mainly due to the increase in variable rate bank
borrowings.

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial
position relate to the following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

rE Group
—E—=F —EF——F
2013 2012
FEx FET
UsS$'000 Us$'000
EHMEE Financial assets
Bk W RE Loans and receivables:
5Kk AW A Trade and other receivables 50,801 53,211
BEBIRITE R Pledged bank deposits 14,458 8,325
ReERREEED Cash and cash equivalents 11,029 11,381
76,288 72,917
cEAaRE Financial liabilities
LEHEKAYENSRAE: Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
BE Borrowings 59,152 42,255
B 5 & E b BT RUR Trade and other payables 17,528 17,589
76,680 59,844
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30. Risk Management (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
(Continued)

KAHE Company
—_E—-= —E——%F
2013 2012
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
EMEE Financial assets
B3N e EOE Loans and receivables:
JE UMY BB A Bl 5k IE Amount due from a subsidiary 16,998 27,248
ReRReEED Cash and cash equivalents 3 3
17,001 27,251
cHas Financial liabilities
HHEKATEN SR AE: Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
FE ST EIE Accruals 200 178
EXRER Capital management

AREERHER  NERAEENHE
BAREEE  ARESECEFRE
% T E AR R EAE R - AEER
EEAEEGFESRETE -

AEENEARBEEREER (BEMH 26
KRENEE) BeMRITESREALQF
BREANRLEED(BEERTELN  FHHE
K AR B 3 A) ©

AEBZEEERERBETEATHE -
AEERLERNEHNEBFEENR
DR EEEARBAYEHRE B
MBNHABREARE AEEAERAE
ENTRENKRESE ROEATR
RBITHROIEEEERIE -

AEEEG R THEGELEANRE - #
REEBTFEMERRE - R_FT—=F
TZA=+—A AEEBTERMAIH -
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 26, cash and bank balances and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall
financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure to
ensure it is in compliance with any loan covenants. The Group
was in compliance with the financial covenants as at 31 December
2013.
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30. [k EE(E)
EXREE(H)

BERSAHLMFEERRB/LEDT

30. Risk Management (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting date was as

follows:
—EB—-=fF —E——F
2013 2012
FEx FET
Us$'000 US$'000
& & (f5E26) Borrowings (note 26) 59,152 42,255
HoRERBESEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (11,029) (11,381)
B BIEFIR TR Less: Pledged bank deposits (14,458) (8,325)
SR B FR A 4t R U K I8 (Bt 5E22)  Less: Pledged other receivables (note 22) (659) (3,291)
BB Net debt 33,006 19,258
55 Equity 110,650 105,403
FEREERLE Net debt to equity ratio 29.8% 18.3%
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3. BEFRS 31. Related Party Transactions
FRN AEEBRBEFILTINRG: During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions

with related parties:

—E-=F —ET——HF
2013 2012
FEx Fx
US$'000 Us$'000
BEEXS: Trading transactions :
ENRARMNBERARMNIERX Processing fee expenses paid to
a fellow subsidiary 23 —
MERNBAREEEm Purchase of goods from
a fellow subsidiary 3 —
HEx5 - Other transactions :
ENfEZMBARMESRX Rental expenses paid to
fellow subsidiaries 12 13
BEWERMBAREMEZEBUKRA  Consultancy fee income received from
fellow subsidiaries 27 —
WERENBRARMNEREE Acquisition of intangible assets from
a fellow subsidiary 760 —
W B B D B RO RE AN RE 25 Acquisition of additional interest in
an associate — 2,202

A IR t2013
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Related Party Transactions (Continued)
The following balances were outstanding at the end of the
reporting period:

—E-=F —ET——HF

2013 2012

FER Fx

US$'000 Us$'000

[ Z BB A RIR K Amounts owned by fellow subsidiaries 4,590 —

BEMBARIAZIEMREEE S RLE
REMIRE M FHEBMER - K
BEFEAERT  RERARERE
B oRZE—ZFR_ZT—_FRN KL
3 5 E R B AR R RIZEME
HEMEE  NERBEAZZRESR
EBEMER-

ARREFRR UNLBEFTRHTIR
EEBEEERE-RATEBRET -

TEEE A B H BN 1057 I B Y
FTARFREENEHE -

The amount owned by fellow subsidiaries represented the
advances to suppliers on the goods to be purchased or processing
services to be provided. The amounts outstanding are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The Group has not made
any allowance for bad or doubtful debts in respect of amounts
owned by fellow subsidiaries nor has any guarantee been given or
received during 2013 or 2012 regarding related party transactions.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
related party transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business.

Remuneration for key management personnel represents amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 10.
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32. ZREIMBARFE

MEARN-—REHR

32. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
General information of the subsidiaries

AABIHERARRHBEMROFEOT

period are set out follows:

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

EMAL BRTRBARZRE rEERRERRESR
£8 RIBR/HE TEEEuH IMERFE REEHLA TEXH
Country/Place of Particulars of issued and ~ Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ Principal place  fully paid share capital/ interest and voting
Name establishment of business registered capital power held by the Group Principal activities
—E-Z§ —“T-—F%
2013 2012
HERAER
Interests held directly
PIEBEZRERAR REBRLES BE 29,491,360/% & & REEK
EE1E T T8 R
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings The BVI Hong Kong 29,491,360 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited of US$1 each
MEREERD
Interests held indirectly
RERLES BE 1REEIE T T8 R REZEK
Brilliant Manufacture Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RERLES B TREEIETHEER REER
Flash Universal Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBELES N IREEIETHEER REEK
Horizon Network Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
EEBREAES BB RE A3 T E i Ak REZK
Magnificent Worldwide Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
EHERAT B BE 1R EE 1 T A E AR REZEK
Full Keen Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
BERE (BE)ERAT BB B 100/ TR EE1E TTH) REER
Tk
Lansen Investments (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding

Limited

HK$1 each
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32. AARIMBARFE (&) 32. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)

MEARN-—RERE)

B3 BRTRARZRE FEBEMBREREEER
=L RYBR 4% IELEHE IMELHE REREH LA TEEXH
Country/Place of Particulars of issued and ~ Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ Principal place  fully paid share capital/ interest and voting
Name establishment of business registered capital power held by the Group Principal activities
—B-=fF —T——-F
2013 2012
MERAEES
Interests held indirectly
PAEBRE(FEEB)ERAA BB BE TBREEVETHEBK REER
Lansen Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
TEEMRERREB)BERRA BB BE IBREEVETHEBK REEK
Liwah Plant Extract (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
REBRBAERRAA BB BE IREEVETHEBK REEK
Point Kin International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
BAERECRINBRAF B (B it a) T A R #29,498,0007C BEE
Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen) The PRC (note a) The PRC RMB29,498,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Company Limited
ERTEHEFRAA B (B i b) FE A R #236,000,0007T SeELE
Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical The PRC (note b) The PRC RMB236,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Company Limited
BRIEEYRBRMAERDT & Eb) T A K %28,000,0007C BRI
Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction The PRC (noteb) ~ The PRC RMB28,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Technology Limited
ERAEREFRRA B (B o) F B A R #35,000,0007T BEER
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (notec) ~ The PRC RMB35,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Company Limited
ENPEENELFERAA B (Fff &) FE A K #3,500,0007C BEXK
Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry The PRC (notea) ~ The PRC RMB3,500,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Limited
ERAEBENRERAT B (M 5 b) +E A R #1,000,0007C BEXY
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (noteb) ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business

Technology Company Limited
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32. RXNFKBARFE (H)

MEARN—RENGE)
(33
() REBEKIABRAF

(b RPBEKZA/IIEBECE

@ RPBRRIA/PIIEGERLE -

FRAUEBTAMBRARETEMNELE
% o

32.

Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes

€)] Established as a limited liability company in the PRC
(b) Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC

(c) Established as a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the year.
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Place of incorporation/ Number of wholly-owned
Principal activities establishment subsidiaries
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2013 2012
BEXK ae
Pharmaceutical business The PRC 6 6
REER o
Investment holding Hong Kong 5 5
BEER KBRS
Investment holding The BVI 5 5
16 16
33. #tEM KK 33. Approval of Financial Statements
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The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 28 March 2014.



-

T an
uasuni

&I A od 77 2 BR

Caring For Health Cherishing Life



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Back Cover

